
Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College 
Board of Governors  

Meeting of December 17, 2024  
6:00 p.m. 

100 College Drive, Building C, Room 428  
Logan, West Virginia, and Zoom 

To Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://zoom.us/j/98756998061?pwd=vXhF2JCqsEM8HIb7NA6pi500asYBSw.1 

Meeting ID:  987 5699 8061 
Passcode: 979031 
Dial In: 1 646 876 9923 

Mission:   Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College provides accessible, affordable, 
quality education and training that promote success for those we serve. 

AGENDA 

1. Roll Call, Verification of Quorum, Vice Chair Comments,
and Call to Order ....................................................................................... Ms. Shawn Cline-Riggins  

Board Vice Chair 

2. Oath of Office  ......................................................................................................... Mr. Joe Linville 
Chief Facilities Management Officer 

3. Presentation of FY 2024 Financial Audit

3.1 Independent Auditor’s Reports  ................................................................................................. 3 
Suttle & Stalnaker, PLLC Representative 

4.  Classified Staff Report ............................................. Ms. Kimberly Maynard, Classified Staff Chair 

5.  Faculty Senate Report  ............................................................................................... Mr. Matt Mayo  
Chair, Faculty Senate 

6.         Finance Report  ….  ..................................................................................................................... 109 
 Ms. Velva Pennington Chief Financial Officer 

7.  President’s Report ....................................................................................... Dr. Pamela L. Alderman 

8. Action Items…………………………………………………………………….Vice Chair Riggins  

8.1 *Approval of August 20, 2024, Board Meeting Minutes ….… ..................................... 111 
8.2 * Approval of October 15, 2024, Board Meeting Minutes  ............................................ 118 

1

https://zoom.us/j/98756998061?pwd=vXhF2JCqsEM8HIb7NA6pi500asYBSw.1


8.3 * Request for Approval to Release for 30 Day Comment Period  ....... Ms. Debbie Dingess, 
Chief Human Resources Officer 

9.3.1  SAM-2024.1 Faculty Handbook ........................................................................... 123 
9.3.2  SCP-1091, Classified Staff Constitution  .............................................................. 148 
93.3  SCP-1160, Philosophy on Diversity Equity, and Inclusion ................................... 155 

8.4 *Request for Approval of Policy Recission  ........................................ Ms. Debbie Dingess, 
Chief Human Resources Officer 

8.4.1  SCP-1400, Request for Approval of Guest Speaker .............................................. 160 

8.5 *Strategic Plan ................................................................................................................ 167 
Darrell Taylor/ Chief Student Services Officer 

8.6 Appointment of Ad Hoc Committee for Board of Governors Chair ..... Vice Chair Riggins 

9 Informational Items……………………………………………………………. Vice Chair Riggins 

9.1 Organizational Chart  ...................................................................................................... 187 
Ms. Debbie Dingess Chief Human Resources Officer 

9.2 Hospitality and Tourism Program ................................................................ Mr. Chris Ward 
Interim Dean of Professional and Transfer Programs 

9.3 The next regular Board of Governors meeting will be held February 18, 2025, at 6:00 
p.m.

10. Adjournment ....................................................................................................... Vice Chair Riggins 

*Denotes an item requiring action/Approval.

2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



 

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College 
Board of Governors  

Meeting of August 20, 2024   
100 College Drive, Logan, WV  

Logan Campus, Building C, Room 428  
Via Zoom Meeting ID: 938 1088 0807 

https://zoom.us/j/93810880807?pwd=Uk85eOAB4fEW1SonC6iqyVmCGxEhiR.1 

Dial-in:  1-646-876-9923 
6:00 p.m. 

 
MINUTES 

  
Board Members Present: Bud Baldwin, Chair; Shawn Cline-Riggins, Vice-Chair, George 

Nisbet, Secretary, Sam Stewart, Chris Gray, Chris Ward, Josh 
Stowers, David Gresham, David Lemmon, Jarrod Fletcher, and 
Kristi Perkins  

 
Board Members Absent: Sydney Brown   
 
Also Attending:   President, Dr. Pamela Alderman, Jennifer Dove, Recorder,  
      Velva Pennington, Chief Finance Officer, Joe Linville, Chief 

Facilities Management Officer, Debbie Dingess, Chief Human 
Resources Officer, Tom Cook, Chief Information Officer, and Darrell 
Taylor, Chief Student Services Officer 

 
Guests:     None  
 
1. Call to Order 
 

Board of Governors Chair, Mr. Robert Baldwin, declared a quorum present and convened 
the meeting at 6:00 p.m. 
 

2. Call for Public Comments to the Board of Governors  
 

Chair Baldwin asked for public comments to the Board.  No requests for public comment 
were received. 

 
3. Oath of Office 
 

Mr. Joe Linville, Chief Facilities Management Officer, and Public Notary administered the 
Oath of Office to Jarrod Fletcher, Dr. David Lemmon, and Kristi Perkins, Student 
Representative.   

 

4. Student Services Annual Report  

Darrell Taylor, Chief Student Services Officer presented the Student Services Annual 
Report to the Board.   The complete report is attached to the agenda packet.  Mr. Taylor 
presented the following highlights to the Board:  

111

https://zoom.us/j/93810880807?pwd=Uk85eOAB4fEW1SonC6iqyVmCGxEhiR.1


• Co-curricular assessment program ensures students gain essential skills that support 
their academic achievements. Enhances student learning in leadership, civic 
engagement, and personal growth.  

• Higher Learning Commission visiting team were very complimentary regarding this 
model.   The visiting team mentioned taking model back to their institutions as best 
practices.  

• SS Connect is a digital platform for virtual student services.  SS Connect provides a 
way for students to connect with advisors, financial aid, business office, information 
technology (IT) and registrar. Faculty members can also conduct office hours via SS 
Connect. This platform helps to reach students who struggle to access the campus in 
person.   SS Connect has assisted in Southern’s retention rate improving by 7.5% over 
the past three years. The integration of a service dashboard to track data has also 
assisted in making decisions to enhance student services.   

• Southern has joined the statewide Service Excellence initiative enhances our 
commitment in providing outstanding service to students and employees.  A Service 
Excellence committee with representatives from each department of the college.  The 
committee created a curriculum-based training on the fundamentals of service 
excellence which sixty-one employees have completed.   

• Two upcoming initiatives planned: Days of Service tentatively planned for October 11th 
and April 4th.  These events will provide students, faculty, staff, and community 
members a chance to engage in community service projects.  Intramural sports and 
recreational activities have also been introduced to increase healthy opportunities and 
camaraderie.  

• Mr. Taylor thanked Student Services staff for all their dedication and hard work 

5. Faculty Senate Report 

Chris Ward provided the following update from Faculty Senate:  
 

• Faculty returned last Monday and attended Faculty Convocation Tuesday and 
Wednesday.  

• Faculty Handbook will be presented to Faculty Senate during the first governance day 
of the academic year.   

• Mr. Ward informed the Board that this will be his last meeting as Senate Chair due to 
his two terms expiring.   

6. HLC Institutional Update 

President Alderman asked Reginia Bias, Director of Accreditation and Assessment to 
present the HLC Update on Mr. Bill Alderman’s behalf.  

• Southern is on the Standard Pathway.  Southern will have another visit in 2026.  Under 
the Standard Pathways visits occur every four years while the Open Pathway is every 
ten years.  

• Mr. Bill Alderman, Accreditation Liaison Officer is currently working on the upcoming 
visit. Mr. Alderman is forming the four criteria teams and working on the cross walk. 
This crosswalk will show how the old criteria meet the new criteria. Ms. Bias explained 
briefly what the changes from five criterion to four were.  

• Mr. Alderman has been working on files that will part of Evolve 25.  
• Ms. Bias has recently been named as peer reviewer for the Higher Learning 

Commission. Her training will begin in September and October.  Ms. Bias is also a 

112



peer reviewer for ACEN (Accreditation Commission for Education in Nursing) for three 
years.  

• The report will be a mission reflective approach. The mission will be woven through all 
four criteria.  

• The Assessment Academy will graduate in October. This has been a four-year 
process. The team will be going to Chicago to graduate where they will be presenting 
as well. Ms. Bias shared the Assessment Board that will be presented. When the 
academy started the goal was to develop an assessment plan.  A useable assessment 
plan was developed.  The visitors were impressed with this plan and will adopt parts 
of the plan at their institutions.    

• President Alderman charged the Assessment Academy to submit a proposal for the 
annual HLC conference.  Two proposals, and a possible third, will be submitted by 
September 13th.   

7.  Finance Report  

 Ms. Velva Pennington provided the following Finance report to the Board:  
 

• A new fiscal year has started, and work is in progress on last year’s audit and financial 
statements. An accurate gain/loss number will not be available until financial 
statements are complete.  

• First Financial Aid disbursement is scheduled for September 9th.  Recording of 
financial aid revenue will begin later that month.  

• Two loan disbursements are scheduled: one in late September and one in mid-
October. Aid and refunds will be disbursed every two weeks until November 4th.  

• To closely monitor budgets, twenty-five percent of budgets have been released. The 
remining seventy-five percent will be released based on incoming revenue.  

• The college currently has one hundred and sixty-six days of operational cash on hand 
and it costs $76,784.59 a day to operate.  

• $5,020,691 has been collected in tuition and fees revenue for the year, which 
represents a little over one hundred percent of the 2024 tuition and fees budget.  

• Interest income is at two hundred and twenty-two percent of the budgeted amount due 
to high interest rates.  

 
8. President’s Report 
 
 President Alderman presented her report to the Board:  
 

• Received letter from HLC citing that Southern has no areas of concern, no actions, 
and no progress reports.   This is a first for Southern.  All Allied Health and Nursing 
programs are accredited.  EMS (Emergency Management Services) has an upcoming 
state accreditation visit, and Mike Smith is well prepared.  

• Classes began yesterday, so an enrollment report isn’t available yet.  As of the end of 
the summer semester, Southern has five semesters of increased enrollment.  

• ECA students (Early College Academy) will begin next Monday.  We are expecting a 
thirteen to seventeen percent increase in those numbers.   

• Introduced Melinda Saunders as the new Dean for Non-Traditional Programs and 
Workforce. We are very happy to welcome her back.  

• Southern’s production of Wizard of Oz ran for two weekends.   After all expenses were 
paid Southern netted approximately $35,000.00.   President Alderman thanked Bill 
France for his vision and foresight.   The money raised will go towards upgrades to the 
Savas Kostas Performing Arts Theater.   

• All employees received a $2,200.00 across the board raise on July 1.   

113



• President Alderman reviewed a letter she received from Mr. Matthew Riggs, 
Superintendent of Boone County Schools asking Southern to vacate the Boone 
campus by the end of the 2024-2025.  Will meet with the Board of Education next 
Tuesday to discuss.   President Alderman expressed her disappointment in having to 
leave that campus after so many years.    She will keep the Board informed as this 
process moves forward. President Alderman reiterated that we will not be leaving 
Boone County just as we will not be leaving Wyoming County.  We will be looking for 
space.  Mr. David Grehsam has been in contact with the President regarding spaces 
that may be available.   

• Working with the Visionary Committee on the Williamson Campus regarding a new 
program that we would like to have in place by Spring or Summer.  

• We hosted WV Northern’s President, Daniel Mosser, as well as two nursing instructors 
on June 26th.  They were very impressed with our facilities and nursing labs.   

• President Alderman is working with President Gordon Gee from West Virginia 
University, as well as Major General Jim Hoyer, Chris Hamilton and others regarding 
a new mining engineering 2 plus 2 program here at Southern. President Alderman 
thank Chair Baldwin for providing her with the contact information. President Gee will 
be coming in a couple of months to meet with us.  Very excited to have them on 
campus.  

• Marshall University President Brad Smith, University of Charleston President Marty 
Roth will be on campus to soon to sign new affiliation agreements.  President 
Alderman was pleased to announce that Southern has increased our number of 
affiliation agreements across the state.  

• Met with Rufner Woody from Devils Backbone to discuss possible opportunities and 
toured their resort.   

• New Lineman Program began July 8th and it was full.  
• In process of finalizing our Strategic Plan.  Hopeful to present it to the Board in October 

or December.  
• Hosted the West Virginia Department of Arts, Culture, and History Arts Caravan on 

August 9th for a grant writing workshop.  
• Southern has received the $800,000.00 Federal Earmark for the Early College 

Academy.  
• $1,200,000.00 Federal earmark money for the Library and Commons are renovation 

is forthcoming.  Once the G5 account is finalized that money can be sent to Southern.  
• Second Annual Sgt. Cory Maynard softball tournament was held on August 10th. 

Approximately $15,000.00 was raised and we have almost met the full funding for that 
scholarship.  

• Faculty Convocation was held on August 13th and 14th.  
• Working with ZMM architects regarding the HVAC units on the Logan campus and the 

roof on the main campus of the Williamson Campus.  
• Since the last Board meeting Southern’s Foundation has received over $60,000.00 in 

cash donations. The Foundation has also received an award notification for a 
$300,000.00 grant that will be received next year. This money will be used to replace 
seating in the Savas Kostas Performing Arts Theater.  

• Our segments on the PBS show Viewpoint are being shown now and will be shown 
throughout the year. The commercials are being shown on various networks as well.  

• Southern has received a $2,100,000.00 SREB (Southern Regional Educational Board) 
grant.   We are working in conjunction with Marshall University. This grant will work 
with middle and high school students in our district looking for alignment between 
Southern and Marshall.   

 
9.  Discussion Items 
 
 9.1 Wyoming Campus Update  

114



Southern has received approval on the deed from the Governor’s real estate 
division today. The request now moves on to the Board of Public Works to get 
placed on that agenda for approval. Once that is complete, we will send it to the 
Attorney General’s office to sign off on the deed. That will complete the process.   
Wyoming County 911 will be moving in.  They have agreed to allow us to remain 
the building for eighteen months while we search for another location.  

 9.2 Mingo County Schools Use of Williamson Campus Update  

President Alderman has been working with Dr. Johnny Branch, Mingo County 
Superintendent regarding use of some of the unused floors of the Williamson 
Campus for programing that he is needing space for.  President Alderman will 
keep the Board updated as that moves forward.  

10. Action Items  

10.1 Approval of June 18, 2024 Board Meeting Minutes  
 

MOTION:   Josh Stowers moved to approve the June 18, 2024, meeting 
minutes.  

 
ACTION: Shawn Cline-Riggins seconded the motion. The motion was carried 

unanimously, and Chair Baldwin declared the motion adopted 
 

10.2 Request for Final Approval of Policy after an Additional 30-Day Comment 
Period  

  
  10.2.1 SCP-5XXX, PCI Compliance and Merchant Services  
 

MOTION: George Nisbet moved the adoption of the following 
resolution: 

   
RESOLVED, That the Southern West Virginia Community 
and Technical College Board of Governors grant final 
approval of SCP-5XXX, Payment Card Industry Data 
Security Standards Compliance and Merchant Services. 

   
ACTION: Chris Ward seconded the motion.  The motion was carried 

unanimously, and Chair Baldwin declared the motion 
adopted. 

 

 10.3 Request for Final Approval Following 30-day Comment Period 

  10.3.1 SCP-1230, Firearms, Weapons, and Explosives Policy  
  

MOTION: Chris Ward moved the adoption of the following resolution: 
   

RESOLVED, That the Southern West Virginia Community 
and Technical College Board of Governors grant final 
approval of SCP-1230, Firearms, Weapons, and Explosives 
Policy. 

 
ACTION: Chris Gray seconded the motion.  The motion was carried 

unanimously, and Chair Baldwin declared the motion 
adopted. 

115



 

11. Informational Items 

 11.1 Organizational Chart  

Ms. Debbie Dingess provided the current Organizational Chart to the Board 
which was attached to the agenda packet.  

 11.2 Succession Plan  

President Alderman presented the Succession Plan to the Board for the 
President’s Office as well as for Cabinet.  The Succession Plan was attached to 
the agenda packet.  

11.3 The next regular Board of Governors meeting will be held on October 15, 
2024 at 6:00 p.m.  

 

12.  Possible Executive Session under Authority of WV Code §6-9 Regarding Personnel 
 
 12.1 Personnel Matters 
   

Chair Baldwin invited a motion for the Board to enter Executive Session.  Chris Ward 
moved that the Board of Governors enter an Executive Session pursuant to West Virginia 
Code §6-9A to Discuss Personnel Matters.  Shawn Cline Riggins seconded the motion 
that carried unanimously.  Chair Baldwin declared the motion adopted and the Board then 
met in an Executive Session at 7:15 p.m.  Following deliberations, Shawn Cline Riggins 
moved that the Board rise from Executive Session and reconvene in open session. Chris 
Gray seconded the motion which was carried unanimously.  The Board took no votes nor 
made any decisions during the Executive Session. 

 
 12.2 Results of Annual Evaluation of President  
 

MOTION:    Chris Ward moved to approve the results of the Annual Evaluation 
of the President as presented.  

 
ACTION: Chris Gray seconded the motion. The motion was carried 

unanimously, and Chair Baldwin declared the motion adopted 
 
12.3    Results of Annual Board of Governors Self Evaluation  
 

MOTION:    Shawn Cline Riggins moved to approve the results of the Annual 
Board of Governors Self Evaluation as presented.  

 
ACTION: Chris Gray seconded the motion. The motion was carried 

unanimously, and Chair Baldwin declared the motion adopted 
 
12.4    Five-Year Evaluation of President Alderman  
 
            Chair Baldwin appointed Shawn Cline-Riggins and David Lemmon to lead the 

evaluation process.   The draft version of the evaluation should be presented to 
the Board in February and finalized by the June meeting.  

 
 

116



 
 13. Adjournment  
 

There being no further business, Chair Baldwin declared the meeting adjourned.  
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Robert Baldwin, Chair 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jennifer Dove  
Executive Assistant to the President 
and Board of Governors 
 
 

  

117



 

 

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College 
Board of Governors  

Meeting of October 15, 2024   
100 College Drive, Logan, WV  

Logan Campus, Building C, Room 428  
Via Zoom  

                             
https://zoom.us/j/98756998061?pwd=vXhF2JCqsEM8HIb7NA6pi500asYBSw.1 

Meeting ID:  987 5699 8061 
Dial-in: 1-646-876-9923 

6:00 p.m. 
 

MINUTES 
  
Board Members Present: Bud Baldwin, Chair; Shawn Cline-Riggins, Vice-Chair, George 

Nisbet, Secretary, Sam Stewart, Chris Gray, Chris Ward, Sydney 
Brown, David Gresham, David Lemmon, Jarrod Fletcher, and Kristi 
Perkins  

 
Board Members Absent: Josh Stowers   
 
Also Attending:   President, Dr. Pamela Alderman, Velva Pennington, Chief Finance 

Officer, Joe Linville, Chief Facilities Management Officer, Debbie 
Dingess, Chief Human Resources Officer, Tom Cook, Chief 
Information Officer, Darrell Taylor, Chief Student Services Officer, 
David Lord, Director of Safety and Campus Operations, Kim 
Maynard,  

 
Guests:     Ruffner Woody, Chris Canterbury and Chris Varney  
 
 
1. Call to Order 
 

Board of Governors Chair, Mr. Robert Baldwin, declared a quorum present and convened 
the meeting at 6:00 p.m. 
 

2. Call for Public Comments to the Board of Governors  
 

During the Public Comment period, concern was raised that Board members were “getting 
into the weeds” as previously noted in the 2018 and 2020 Higher Learning Commission 
report.  Those commenting voiced their concern that this could be an issue for the college 
in the future. Also, comments were received by those thanking the Board for their support 
of the upcoming Hospitality and Tourism program that will be on the Williamson Campus.  
No further speakers came forward.  

 
3.  Emergency Preparedness Report 

118

https://zoom.us/j/98756998061?pwd=vXhF2JCqsEM8HIb7NA6pi500asYBSw.1


  
David Lord, Director of Safety and Campus Operations presented the Emergency 
Preparedness report to the Board.   The complete report is attached to the agenda packet.  
Mr. Lord presented the following highlights to the Board:  
 

• Annual Campus Safety Survey and Crime Report. This report is filed with the 
Department of Education annually.  Clarified that non campus buildings are the 
schools who have ECA (Early College Academy) courses.  

• Governance Day presentation on September sixth covered all topics required by 
BRIM.  

• Reviewed the trainings performed over the past year.   
• Mr. Lord also attached a copy of the monthly Safety Newsletter which is sent out 

to all employees.   
 
4. Classified Staff Report  
  

Ms. Kimbely Maynard, Chair of Classified Staff presented the following update from 
Classified Staff:  
 

• Classified Staff met with President Alderman on October 8th.  
• The Administration is invited to come to speak to Classified Staff to inform them of 

what is currently going on in their respective areas.   
• Teri Wells, Registrar, spoke to Classified Staff in August regarding “actor students” 

and the issues that arise from them.  
• Tom Cook, Chief Information Officer spoke to Classified Staff in September 

regarding security issues. Mr. Cook also asked for them to activate their Southern 
app.  The app is a good way to receive information about any emergencies on 
campus.  

• Southern Samaritans is a subcommittee of Classified Staff that will help provide 
assistance to staff who may be going through a tough time, such a family illness, 
fires, floods, etc. Samaritans can do that with funds that are raised.  The upcoming 
fundraiser will be selling chances to movie baskets. 

• Classified Staff Constitution has been submitted to the Policy and Procedures 
committee for approval for advancement through the governance structure.  

 
5. Faculty Senate Report  
 
 Mr. Matt Mayo, Faculty Senate Chair presented the following update to the Board:  
 

• Mr. Mayo introduced himself as the new Chair of Faculty Senate.  
• Senate is currently accepting input from Faculty on the Faculty Handbook.  The 

Faculty Handbook will be submitted to the Policy and Procedures committee for 
their review and approval to advance on through the governance structure.   

• Faculty is currently working on policy reviews. 
 

6.  HLC Institutional Response Update  

Mr. Bill Alderman, Business Professor/Accreditation Liaison Officer and Special Projects 
provided the following HLC update to the Board:  

• Current criteria is in effect until August 2025 and the revised criteria will take effect 
September 2025.  

119



• There are now four criteria teams that will begin to meet possibly next month. Will 
continue writing branching off the interim report.  

• Summary of Adopted Changes is required by policy to comprehensively review 
criteria for accreditation.   

• Mission reflected approach. HLC has adopted revisions at a new institutional 
mission section at the beginning of the criteria for the accreditation policy. 
Institution must demonstrate how it meets those criteria through this mission 
reflective lens.  The relationship between the mission and criteria is threaded 
throughout that criteria with mentions of the mission in each of the 4 criteria.  This 
is more streamlined and provides clarity.  

• HLC consolidated criteria on teaching and learning.   
• Upcoming plans and proposals are forthcoming.  Mr. Alderman has submitted a 

proposal to be a peer reviewer for HLC.  Regia Bias has already been selected as 
a peer reviewer. A presentation proposal has been submitted based on our last 
HLC report at the Annual HLC conference in April.  

• Plans for the Assessment Academy’s future, that is currently being reviewed.  
• HLC has proposed dates for the 2026-2027 mid-cycle review. October 2026 was 

the first selection with November 2026 as the second option. For Spring, April 12-
13th 2027 was the first choice with April 5-6th as the second option.  

• Mid-cycle review is our next year of reaffirmation of accreditation that will go 
towards our 2032-2033 campaign. This is impressive to have a mid-cycle review 
which is standard for our standard pathway.  

• Mr. Alderman reviewed the timeline that was provided in the agenda packet.  
• Mr. Alderman explained how the criterion has changed.   
• Mr. Alderman also provided an updated list of professional developments attended 

by himself and Regina Bias.  
• Assessment Academy will defend their final project tomorrow and Monday morning 

in Chicago. Nathan Freeman, Larry D’Angelo and Reginia Bias. Mr. Alderman 
highlighted some sections of the project for the Board.   

7.  Finance Report 

Ms. Vela Pennington, Chief Finance Officer provided the following Finance update to the 
Board.  

• First Quarter of the fiscal year has ended.  Financial statements were due on 
October 1st and that deadline was met. This will be presented at the December 
meeting.  

• The first round of Pell refunds was issued to students on September 19th in the 
amount of $1,388,197.99.  

• On target with overall spending. Spending on average 26% in all areas.   
• It currently costs the college $19,476.00 a day to operate.  
• We currently have 192 days of operational cash on hand.  

8.  President’s Report  

President Alderman provided the following highlights from her report that was attached 
the agenda packet: 

• Today is census day. Southern is up almost 2% in headcount and full-time 
equivalency. Everyone at Southern has done a great job to make this happen.  
This is the sixth straight semester that Southern has seen an increase.  

120



• The first Governance Day of Academic Year was held on September 6th. 
• Southern was selected by Modern Think as a great College to Work For in Shared 

Governance and Faculty Experience.  Southern has been awarded this recognition 
three times since 2021. 

• Southern’s Allied Health and Nursing faculty, staff and students and student 
services representatives attended Pikeville Medical Center’s Bridge Day. 
Approximately 100 individuals from Southern participated in the event. This was a 
recruiting event when we not only recruited for the Allied Health and Nursing 
programs but also for our academic and workforce programs as well.  

• Boone and Logan Campuses participated in Save a Life Day hosted by the West 
Virginia Collegiate Recovery Network.  

• We have participated in several community events including the Apple Butter 
Festival in Chapmanville and Heat in the Hills at Lincoln County. 

• Still in the process of looking for a site for the Boone Campus.   
• Papers finalizing the sale of the Wyoming Campus to the Wyoming County 911 

Center will be tomorrow at 10 a.m. on the Wyoming Campus.  
• The Strategic Plan is nearing completion.  The Board will receive the Strategic Plan 

to approve at the December BOG meeting.  
• President Alderman asked Mr. Stacy Dingess to update the Board on recent 

donations.  The Foundation has received approximately $170,000 in the last four 
weeks.  Mr. Stacy reported the individual donations as well as the truckload of food 
from Sysco that replenished food to the food pantries on each of our campuses.     

• The new Hospitality and Tourism program is moving through the governance 
system and should be to the Board for approval at the December meeting.  

• Received $800, 000 earmark for the Early College Academy.  
• Received $1,250,000 earmark and $375,000 from the Governor’s Contingency 

Funds for Logan Campus Library updates.  
• Applied for a Perkins Grant to support the Junior Nurse Academy for Summer 2025 

and Summer 2026 on the Logan Campus.  
• Still working to finalize the SREB grant.  
• West Virginia Higher Education Policy Commission and West Virginia Community 

and Technical College System have announced that Southern will receive a 
$5,000 First Generation Student Success Grant. This Grant aims to recruit, retain, 
and foster the success of first-generation college students.  

• Governor and Legislature has approved a third round of nursing expansion money.  
Southern anticipates receiving some of that money, since all the schools in West 
Virginia received it last time.  

• President Alderman provided the Board a list of upcoming events, graduations, 
and holiday dates and times.  

9. Action Items 

 9.1 Approval of August 20, 2024, Board Meeting Minutes.  

Minutes were not available at this time and were tabled to the December 17, 2024, 
Board meeting.  

10.  Informational Items 

 10.1 Organizational Chart  

121



Ms. Debbie Dingess provided the current Organizational Chart to the Board which 
was attached to the agenda packet.  

 10.2 Presidents Evaluation   

Ms. Debbie Dingess informed the Board that according to West Virginia 
Community and Technical College Council, Legislative Rule Series 5 and also in 
West Virginia Code regarding evaluation of community college presidents, the 
Governing Board for Community Colleges will conduct a formal and a structured 
written performance evaluation of the President at the end of their initial contract 
period. Then every third year thereafter not five years. As such, five-year 
evaluations are reserved for four yar institutions that fall under the West Virginia 
Higher Education Policy Commission. Southern’s policy SCP-8600.A states that 
the Board will conduct annual evaluation of the President in a form decided upon 
by the Board.  To stay in compliance with SCP-8600, President Alderman would 
receive an informal written every year with a method that you determine, such as 
questionnaires to the Board. Since the President received her comprehensive 
formal evaluation in 2023, and to be in compliance with the WV CTCS rules in WV 
State Code, her next formal comprehensive evaluation is not due until the year 
2026.  

10.3 The next regular Board of Governors meeting will be held on December 17, 
2024 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

11.  Possible Executive Session under Authority of WV Code §6-9 Regarding Personnel 
 
 11.1 Personnel Matters 
   

Chair Baldwin invited a motion for the Board to enter Executive Session.  David Lemmon  
moved that the Board of Governors enter an Executive Session pursuant to West Virginia 
Code §6-9A to Discuss Personnel Matters.  Jarrod Fletcher seconded the motion that 
carried unanimously.  Chair Baldwin declared the motion adopted and the Board then met 
in an Executive Session at 7:55 p.m.   

12  Adjournment  
 

There being no further business, Chair Baldwin declared the meeting adjourned.  
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Robert Baldwin, Chair 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jennifer Dove  
Executive Assistant to the President 
and Board of Governors 
 
 

 

 

122



SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
MEETING OF DECEMBER 17, 2024 
 
 
ITEM: SAM-2024.1, Faculty Handbook 
 
RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION: RESOLVED, That the Southern West Virginia 

Community and Technical College Board of 
Governors grant approval for distribution of SAM-
2024.1, Faculty Handbook, to Southern’s consti-
tuents and the Chancellor for Community and 
Technical College Education for the required 30-day 
public comment period. 

 
STAFF MEMBER:  Debbie C. Dingess 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
SAM-2024.1, Faculty Handbook, was revised and reviewed by the Faculty Senate and Faculty 
Assembly over the last couple of years.  After the Handbook was ratified by Faculty, it was 
reviewed by the Policies and Procedures Committee at its meeting on November 8, 2024, with 
the recommendation to forward the Handbook to the President’s Cabinet.  At its meeting on 
December 3, 2024, the President’s Cabinet granted approval for the advancement of SAM-
2024.1, Faculty Handbook, to the Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College 
Board of Governors.  
 
Therefore, the staff recommends that the Board of Governors of Southern West Virginia 
Community and Technical College grant approval of SAM-2024.1, Faculty Handbook, for 
advancement to Southern’s constituents and the Chancellor for Community and Technical 
College Education for the required 30-day public comment period. 

123



November 2024 

SAM-2024.1 

 
 

 

Faculty Handbook 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

 

124



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  2 | 24 

 

PREFACE 

 

Established traditions in the academic world dictate that faculties take an active part in the governance of their 

colleges. The faculty at Southern do fully recognizefully recognizes the legal authority for the guidance and reputation 

of the College which is placed by the West Virginia Legislature in the Board of Governors and the President of the 

College. However, the faculty also perceives a responsibility on its part to manifest the rights of academic freedom 

in providing to the administration its views and advice on matters relating to the academic program in general and to 

faculty specifically.  

 

This Faculty Handbook provides an authoritative informational reference to policies and procedures, privileges, 

obligations, and responsibilities that affect faculty members. This handbook applies to all full-time and part-time 

faculty members, full time and part time, of Southern. 

 

This handbook has been prepared for your information and understanding of the policies, philosophies, and practices 

of Southern. The Rules of the West Virginia Higher Education Policy Commission, the West Virginia Council for 

Community and Technical College Education, and the policies contained in the Southern Policies (SCP's) Manual 

form the base documents for the College's operation.  Information in this handbook is taken from and/or supports 

these directives.  

 

Because such policies and procedures are subject to change, with or without prior notice, the information provided in 

this handbook is not intended to create a contract of employment nor should it be construed as terms and conditions 

of a contract of employment with Southern. 

 

Acceptance of a faculty appointment at Southern necessarily includes acceptance of College policy and procedures, 

and of arrangements other emendation. The Faculty Handbook is, of course, one authoritative source among several 

other sources. Faculty will wish to consult other sources, such as the College catalog, policies, and procedures found 

on the Southern website. The Handbook is not intended to be exhaustive, as College employee policies applicable to 

faculty are set forth in the Southern Employee Handbook. 

 

This Handbook supersedes all earlier editions. The official copy shall be maintained by the Office of the President, 

Office of Academic Affairs, and the Office of Human RecoursesResources, with copies made available to all faculty 

electronical electronically via the College’s website.   

125



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  3 | 24 

 

MISSION STATEMENT 

 

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College provides accessible, affordable, quality education and 

training that promote success for those we serve. 

 

VISION STATEMENT 

 

Southern aspires to establish itself as a model of leadership, academic excellence, collaboration, and occupational 

training, equipping its students with the tools necessary to compete and prosper in the regional and global 

economies of the twenty-first century. 

 

CORE VALUES 

 

We will accomplish our mission by 

• Achieving excellence in education and service. 

• Exhibiting integrity in all that we do. 

• Collaborating and communicating actively with others. 

• Being committed in word and deed. 

• Imparting passion and compassion to our every task. 

• Leading by encouragement and support of lifelong learning. 

• Embracing change through bold actions. 

• Being creative and innovative at all levels. 

• Initiating opportunities for the community. 

• Celebrating success. 

 

INSTITUTIONAL COMMITMENTS 

 

As a comprehensive community and technical college, Southern is committed to providing: 

 

• Developmental and pre-college level education for those who lack the necessary academic background for 

direct entry into college-level courses. 

 

• Programs of study leading to the associate in arts and the associate in science degrees which can be 

effectively transferred and applied toward the baccalaureate degree. 

 

• Programs of study in career and technical fields leading to a skill-set certification, certificate degree and/or 

the associate in applied science degree for entry into the workforce. 

 

• Workforce development, continuing education and training programs that support the needs of employees 

and employers and serve as a mechanism for economic development. 

 

• Support services that assist students in achieving their education and training goals. 

 

• Community interest programs and activities that promote personal growth and cultural enrichment. 

  

126



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  4 | 24 

 

SECTION I – AUTHORITY OF HANDBOOK AND PROCEDURES FOR CHANGES 

 

1. Authority of this Handbook 

 

1.1. Authority Derived from the Board of Governors 

 

The Faculty Handbook of Southern derives it its authority from the Board of Governors of the College, and 

will be in effect continuously from the date authorized by the Chair of the Board of Governors (or the 

designated representative). 

 

1.1.1. Copies of Handbook 

 

An official copy of the current Faculty Handbook is on file in the Office of the President, Office of 

Academic Affairs, and the Office of Human RecoursesResources. Reference copies are available on 

the College website, and each faculty member receives a link to the online version at the time of 

employment and each time it undergoes extensive revisions. 

 

1.2. Changes to the Handbook 

 

1.2.1. Date Approved Items Are Binding 

 

Additions and amendments to the Faculty Handbook are binding on all affected parties as of the date 

authorized by the Chair of the Board of Governors or a designated representative. 

 

1.2.2. Changes Must Be Approved by the Board of Governors 

 

Since Control of the College is vested in the Board of Governors, any changes to this Faculty 

Handbook must be approved by the Board of Governors. 

 

1.2.3. Handbook Changes 

 

In order to adjust to the business needs of the organization, Southern reserves the right to suspend, 

revise, or revoke any section of this handbook, with the exception of Section II - Faculty Constitution, 

at any time, with or without notice. 

 

1.2.4. Conflict with State and Federal Laws 

 

To the extent that any section of this handbook may conflict with federal, state, or local laws, Southern 

will abide by the applicable federal, state, or local law. 

 

  

127



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  5 | 24 

 

1.2.5. Procedures 

 

1.2.5.1. Amendments or changes in the Faculty Handbook may be approved at an official Faculty 

Senate meeting by two-thirds majority of the Faculty Senate present and voting. 

 

1.2.5.2. Following approval by the Faculty Senate, any changes or amendments shall be submitted to 

the Faculty Assembly for the purpose of voting upon the amendment or change. 

 

1.2.5.3. Any amendment/change, with the exception of Section I, 1.2.5.5, proposed by the Senate 

shall be distributed to every member of the Faculty Assembly at least one month before a 

meeting of the Faculty Assembly for the purpose of voting upon the amendment or change. 

 

1.2.5.4. Opportunity for discussion or debate at a regularly regular or special meeting of the Faculty 

Assembly shall be provided for every amendment/change proposed by the Senate, with the 

exception of Section I, 1.2.5.5 

 

1.2.5.5. In the event changes occur in titles of persons or committees, the Faculty Senate may amend 

the Faculty Handbook without full Faculty Assembly voting/approval. 

 

1.2.6. Ratification of Amendments/Changes 

 

Within one week following the meeting of the Faculty Assembly, ballots shall then be prepared and 

distributed electronically to all members of the Faculty Assembly. Voters shall return their electronic 

ballots to the Faculty Senate by the marked date. Ratification of the proposed amendment shall require 

a three-fourths majority of the responding to the vote. 

  

128



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  6 | 24 

 

SECTION II – FACULTY CONSTITUTION 

 

1. Faculty Assembly 

 

1.1. Composition 

 

Members of the Faculty Assembly are those professors, associate professors, assistant professors, 

instructors, and lecturers holding appointments with full-time faculty contracts with Southern.  

 

1.2. Function 

 

1.2.1. The members of the Southern Faculty Assembly shall elect senators to represent the College as 

outlined in Section II, 2.2. 

 

1.2.2. The Faculty Assembly has the right and responsibility to express its opinion on policies and 

administration of the College. 

 

1.2.3. Members of the Faculty Assembly may review and/or challenge any action of the Senate. Members 

may submit a challenge in writing and present it orally directly to the Senate. If no action is taken by 

the Senate within 60 calendar days to meet the challenge, the members of the Faculty Assembly 

may, through a petition signed by fifteen of its members, present the challenge to the Faculty 

Assembly through the Senate’s Vice Chair. The issue will be put to a ballot vote, and a simple 

majority of the returned ballots will decide the issue. 

 

1.3. Meetings 

 

1.3.1. The Faculty Assembly shall hold at least two regular meetings during the academic year. The first 

required meeting shall be during the week prior to the beginning of the Fall semester. The second 

required meeting shall be in the month of April. All scheduled classes, laboratories, and other 

college meetings involving faculty shall be dismissed during the meeting of the Faculty Assembly. 

 

1.3.2. Those present at the Faculty Assembly shall constitute a quorum. 

 

1.3.3. Special A special meeting of the Faculty Assembly may be called by the Southern College’s 

President, the Faculty Senate chairperson, or the Faculty Senate Vice Chair on petition of fifteen 

members of the Faculty Assembly. 

 

1.4. Presiding Officer  

 

The Faculty Senate chairperson shall be the presiding officer at the Faculty Assembly meetings. In his/her 

absence, the Senate vice chairperson shall be the presiding officer.  In the event both are absent, the Faculty 

Assembly shall elect a presiding officer. 

  

129



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  7 | 24 

 

1.5. Notice of Meetings 

 

Except in the case of an emergency, the Faculty Senate Vice Chair shall notify by email each member of 

the Faculty Assembly at least two weeks in advance of the date of the regular or special meeting. Such 

notification shall include a copy of the proposed agenda. 

 

2. Faculty Senate 

 

2.1. Authority  

 

The Faculty Senate shall be the representative body elected by the Faculty Assembly and shall advise and 

make recommendations to the President on all matters pertaining to the Senate’s function. 

 

2.2. Composition 

 

Membership on in the Faculty Senate is limited to persons who hold full-time faculty contracts. The 

Faculty Senate shall include those representatives elected by the Faculty Assembly at its April meetings on 

the following distribution basis:  

 

Campus Representatives 

1 Senator from the Boone/Lincoln Campus 

1 Senator from the Logan Campus 

1 Senator from the Williamson Campus 

Departmental Representatives 

1 Senator from Allied Health 

1 Senator from Nursing 

1 Senator from Arts & Humanities 

1 Senator from Math & Sciences 

1 Senator from Professional & Technical 

 

The representative elected to represent the Faculty Assembly on the Advisory Council of Faculty (ACF) to 

the State College System and the Faculty Assembly representative on the Board of Governors shall be 

members of the Faculty Senate. 

 

2.3. Elections  

 

Elections for senators shall be held during the month of April. In of every odd- numbered years.,  Tthe 

Faculty Assembly shall nominate and elect the ACF representative and the Faculty representative to the 

Board of Governors. In even numberedeven-numbered years, the Faculty Assembly shall divide into groups 

according to Campus assignment and elect Senators to represent respective Campuses as outlined in 

Section II, 2.2. In addition, each Departmental group will elect a representative at their Division meeting as 

outlined in Section II, 2.2. All respective Senators and representatives are elected to two-year terms. 

 

  

130



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  8 | 24 

 

2.4. Vacancies 

 

Vacancies on the Faculty Senate shall be filled through appointment by the Faculty Senate chairperson with 

approval of the Senate. 

 

2.5. Meetings 

 

2.5.1. The Faculty Senate shall meet a minimum of four (4) times during the academic year on Governance 

Days. Sufficient time for conducting the affairs of the Senate shall be provided. 

 

2.5.2. A quorum at any regular or special meetings of the Faculty Senate shall be one halfone-half of the 

elected Senators plus one. 

 

2.5.3. Each senator shall attend the Faculty Senate meeting, and roll shall be taken and recorded in the 

official minutes of each meeting.   

 

2.5.4. Written notification of meetings and an agenda shall be sent to each member of the Senate for 

receipt at least two calendar days before a meeting, except in emergency situations. 

 

2.5.5. Any member of the Faculty Assembly, administration, or the general public may attend Senate 

meetings. This person’s attendance will be recognized and recorded in the minutes. 

 

2.5.6. There will be no closed meetings or meetings held in private residences. 

 

2.6. Function  

 

2.6.1. The Faculty Senate shall exercise its legislative power for the faculty subject to the limitations of 

Section II, 2.  It shall recommend general policies to the Southern President, the Board of Governors, 

and the West Virginia Community and Technical College Council relative to, but not limited to, the 

following: 

 

2.6.1.1. The standards for admissions, selection, and retention of students. 

 

2.6.1.2. Requirements for granting of degrees. 

 

2.6.1.3. Curricula requirements for general education. 

 

2.6.1.4. Matters of concern to the students and/or faculty members as provided for in established 

policies or newly developed policies. 

 

2.6.1.5. Addition and deletion of all courses and/or programs. 

 

2.6.1.6. The academic calendar and scheduling of classes. 

 

2.6.1.7. Equipment and physical facilities. 

131



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  9 | 24 

 

2.6.1.8. The organizational structure of the College with reference to academic matters. 

 

2.6.1.9. Issues concerning faculty members such as standards of appointment and conduct, academic 

freedom, tenure and /or promotion, salary, nature and conditions of their work, and all 

matters of faculty welfare. 

 

2.6.1.10. Candidates for honorary degrees and other certificates. 

 

2.6.1.11. Rules and regulations implementing any educational policy and/or program. 

 

2.6.1.12. The Faculty Senate shall assume the responsibility (in cooperation with the Chief Academic 

Officer) for the periodic review and revisions of those sections of the Faculty Handbook that 

relate to academic/faculty issues.  The Faculty Handbook shall include this constitution and 

state the established policies of Southern in all matters relating to the faculty. Such revisions 

will be submitted to the Southern President and the Board of Governors for approval.   

 

2.7. Contact System  

 

Members of the Faculty Senate shall keep faculty apprised of relevant Faculty Senate concerns. 

Communication channels shall remain open on all issues and action actions of the Faculty Senate. 

Individual faculty members have the responsibility to see that communication is flowing in both directions. 

 

3. Committees 

 

3.1. Creation and Classification 

 

The Faculty Senate shall have the power to establish such committees as may be needed for the 

performance of its functions.  Senate committees may be one of three kinds: (1) constitutional committees, 

established by the Constitution; (2) standing committees; and/or (3) special ad hoc committees,; created by 

action of the Senate. 

 

3.2. Standing Committees 

 

The Faculty Senate shall establish by resolution any standing committee which it deems necessary to carry 

out the functions of the Faculty Senate.  Standing committees continue until abolished by the Faculty 

Senate. 

 

3.3. Special or Ad Hoc Committees 

 

The Faculty Senate shall establish by resolution any AD ad-hoc committee which it deemsed necessary to 

carry out the functions of the Faculty Senate. A special committee expires at the end of one year, unless 

renewed by the Faculty Senate. Any committee not specifically designated as a standing committee shall be 

a special committee. 

132



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  10 | 24 

 

3.4. Institutionally Established College WideCollege-Wide Committees 

 

3.4.1. The Faculty Senate has the responsibility to select representatives from the Faculty Assembly to 

those institutionally established committees with faculty representatives, if they are not elected by 

Divisions. 

 

3.4.2. The Senate chairperson, or his/her designee, shall represent the faculty on the following 

institutionally established committees:  Financial Exigency. 

 

4. Faculty Senate and Their Elections 

 

4.1. Elections of Officers 

 

The election of officers will be conducted at the Senate’s first Fall meeting.  Only elected Senators may 

vote for or hold an office on in the Senate. The ACF and the Board of Governors representatives can hold 

another office on in the Senate. 

 

4.2. Faculty Senate Officers 

 

The elected officers of the Faculty Senate shall include the following: chairperson and vice-chairperson.  

Officers will be elected from the Faculty Senate membership. 

 

4.3. Senate Chairperson 

 

The chairperson of the Faculty Senate shall preside at the Faculty Assembly, and the Senate.  The 

chairperson will serve as chief spokesperson for the Senate and serve in such liaison capacities as may be 

recommended by Southernthe College’s President.  The chairperson shall be granted one class release time 

(a 3- or 4-hour class) each semester for conducting Faculty Senate business, attending meetings, etc. 

 

4.4. Senate Vice-Chairperson 

 

The vice-chairperson of the Faculty Senate shall, in the absence of the chairperson, preside at the Faculty 

Assembly and the Faculty Senate.  The vice-chairperson will, upon the request of the chairperson, perform 

any such duties and assignments that will promulgate the function of any of these groups 

 

4.5. Senate Recorder 

 

The recorder of the Faculty Senate is appointed from the Southern Staff. The recorder shall perform their 

duties in accordance with the Governance Handbook. 

 

  

133



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  11 | 24 

 

SECTION III – EDUCATIONAL PHILOSOPHY 

1. Accessibility 

As an institution with an "open-door" admissions policy, Southern is accessible to all citizens and provides an 

environment dedicated to serving those who desire to learn. Southern provides equal educational opportunities 

for, and actively seeks, and actively seeks prospective students regardless of personal, economic, or social 

conditions. Students are encouraged to develop fully their capabilities and are assisted in setting realistic 

educational goals for themselves. 

 

2. Comprehensiveness 

The college is comprehensive, as demonstrated by a wide variety of study and career options for students, 

including university transfer programs, career and technical programs, immediate job entry, developmental, and 

community service programs.  The offerings at Southern are determined by analysis of community needs and 

selection on a priority basis to the fullest extent of its available resources. 

 

3. Flexibility 

Southern maintains maximum flexibility in the determination of its programs, phasing out those that become 

less relevant and initiating new ones that meet the changing needs of the community.  Each student has the 

flexibility to move from one level of study to another and from one career to another.  Southern seeks to 

maintain flexibility to accommodate individual differences in learning rates, aptitudes, and prior knowledge. 

 

4. Quality 

Southern is dedicated to providing quality education through excellence in personnel, programs, and facilities.  

Such quality will be a determining factor in the accountability of all college personnel, programs, and facilities 

and will be judged against established performance criteria.  Southern seeks to engender in each student an 

understanding of learning as a life-long process. 

 

5. Accountability 

The campuses of Southern accept accountability for the quality and quantity of their output in the belief that 

every student deserves the opportunity to succeed.  The College is accountable for creating an environment in 

which each student may, through the student's own endeavors, be successful.  Student learning objectives and 

performance criteria are established for each course.  Objectives and performance criteria are established for 

each of the College's programs and employees and for the College itself. The success of students, employees, 

programs, and the College are evaluated against these objectives. 

 

6. Affordability 

The College is committed to maintaining quality educational programs at a cost that is within the reach of the 

average person who wishes to pursue an education beyond the high school level.  Over the years, Southern has 

been able to keep its cost costs lower than other public and private colleges. 

  

134



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  12 | 24 

 

7. General Education Philosophy and Goals 

 

The faculty of Southern dedicate themselves to preparing Southern’s graduates for the challenges that lie ahead. 

The following statement and goals describe Southern’s commitment to providing each graduate with the skills 

and knowledge necessary for professional and personal success. 

 

7.1 Purpose 

 

The purpose of general education at Southern is to produce generally educated students who contribute to 

their communities and country. A generally educated student is a life-long learner with a common academic 

canon of knowledge, concepts, and attitudes. 

 

7.2 Philosophy 

 

Southern is committed to providing general education to help students develop the qualities and skills 

associated with college-educated adults. Southern’s general education promotes the development of 

independent, critical, and conceptual thinking skills and those skills necessary for effective communication. 

Southern’s general education provides students with an integrated view of knowledge and prepares them for 

their role as productive and responsible members of society. 

 

7.3 Goals 

Southern’s general education goals can be found in SCP-3637, General Education Philosophy and Goals. 

   

135

https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-3637-General-Education-Philosophy-and-Goals-02.06.24-Final.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-3637-General-Education-Philosophy-and-Goals-02.06.24-Final.pdf


F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  13 | 24 

 

SECTION IV – FACULTY ORGANIZATION AND PROCEDURES 

1. Hiring Policies 

1.1. Equal Opportunity Policy 

It is the policy of Southern to provide equal opportunities to all prospective and current members of the 

student body, faculty, and staff on the basis of individual qualifications and merit without regard to race, 

sex, religion, age, or national origin. 

This nondiscrimination policy also applies to all educational programs, to admission, employment, and 

other related activities covered under Title IX, which prohibits sex discrimination in higher education. 

As required by Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 

1990, reasonable accommodations are provided for those students whose documented disability may affect 

their pursuit of a college education. 

Southern also neither affiliates with nor grants recognition to any individual, group, or organization having 

policies that discriminate on the basis of race, sex, religion, age, or national origin. 

Southern’s current Affirmative Action Plan and Equal Opportunity Statement may be located on Southern’s 

website. 

Information on the implementation of these policies should be addressed to: 

Debbie Dingess, Affirmative Action Officer 

Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College 

100 College Drive 

Logan, West Virginia 25601  

(304) 896-7408 

 

1.2. Recruitment of Faculty 

 

The process of faculty recruitment is carried out through the Office of Human Resources with the assistance 

of the Division in which the individual is to serve. The Search Committee is appointed by the Division Dean 

in consultation with Human Resources. The responsibility for verifying academic and professional 

credentials for faculty is carried out by the Office of Human Resources. 

 

1.2.1. Faculty Credentials 

 

Each full-time, part-time faculty, and dual credit faculty member will furnish the following at the 

time of application:  application with resume/vita and official transcripts.  These documents must be 

on file in the Human Resources Office by the first day of actual employment by the college. Any 

exceptions must have the approval of the Chief Academic Officer. Faculty are responsible to 

providefor providing Human Resources with updated credential documents as necessary.  Refer to 

SCP-2171, Establishing Minimum Standards and Qualifications for Faculty and Instructional 

Specialists. 

 

136

https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/Southern-West-Virginia-Community-Technical-College-AAP-2024-for-Web-Page.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/EEO-Statement-Updated-2024-2025.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2171-Establishing-Minimum-Standards-and-Qualifications-4.02.24-final.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2171-Establishing-Minimum-Standards-and-Qualifications-4.02.24-final.pdf


F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  14 | 24 

 

The Faculty/Instructional Staff Credentials Certification Form (SCP-2171.A), has been designed to 

ensure all required credentials are part of the faculty member’s official personnel file.  The Division 

Chairperson will provide a list of all courses the faculty member is qualified to teach and the degrees 

and/or special certifications which that meet Higher Learning Commission credentialing 

requirements for teaching these courses.  The Division Chairperson will furnish the completed form 

with all documentation to the Human Resources Office for the employee’s official personnel 

transcript file. 

 

2. Responsibility and Privileges of Employment 

2.1. Privileges of Faculty Appointment 

2.1.1. Outside Employment and Consulting  

The faculty member shall render full-time service to the institution. Outside activities shall not be 

restricted unless such activities or employment interfere with the adequate performance of academic 

duties. The institution expects its faculty to give full professional effort to assignments of teaching 

and service. It is, therefore, considered inappropriate to engage in gainful employment outside the 

institution that is incompatible with the faculty member’s contractual commitment to the institution. 

Moreover, it is considered inappropriate to transact personal business from one’s institutional office 

when it interferes with institutional duties and responsibilities. SCP-2562, Other Employment and 

Certain Volunteer Activities,  provides guidance regarding faculty and professional employee outside 

employment activities, and SCP-2562.A, Other Employment and Certain Volunteer Activities 

Report, is the a mechanism used for reporting the same. 

2.1.2. Political Activity 

State law prohibits a State Government employee from holding office as a member of the West 

Virginia State Legislature. 

Political activities on campus are also prohibited, as is the use of Southern resources for political 

activity, except as authorized by county, state, and national entities for voting purposes only, i.e, 

election days. 

There is no prohibition of faculty involvement in political activities after working hours or on 

personal time. 

2.1.3. Academic Freedom 

Academic freedom at Southern, a public institution of higher education, is necessary to enable the 

institution to perform its societal obligation. Faculty members and students must always remain free 

to inquire, study, and evaluate. 

Through the exercise of academic freedom, members of the academic community freely study, 

discuss, investigate, teach, conduct research, and publish, depending upon their role at the 

institution. To all those members of the academic community who enjoy academic freedom, there 

are, commensurate with such freedom, certain responsibilities commensurate with such freedom. All 

faculty members shall be entitled to full freedom in research and in the publication of the results of 

137

https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2171.A-Faculty-Credentials-Certification-Form-02.06.24.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2562.-Other-Employment-and-Certain-Volunteer-Activities-Final-Approval-6.17.24.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2562.-Other-Employment-and-Certain-Volunteer-Activities-Final-Approval-6.17.24.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2562A.-Other-Employment-and-Certain-Volunteer-Activities-Report-Final-Approval-6.17.24.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2562A.-Other-Employment-and-Certain-Volunteer-Activities-Report-Final-Approval-6.17.24.pdf


F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  15 | 24 

 

such research, subject to the adequate performance of their other academic duties, which may 

include designated instruction, research, extension service, and other professional duties. Activity for 

pecuniary return that interferes with one's obligations to the institution should be based upon an 

understanding, reached before the work is performed, and with the authorities authority of the 

institution. Further, each faculty member is entitled to freedom in the classroom in discussing the 

subject taught. In addition, when faculty members speak or write as citizens outside the institution, 

they shall be free from institutional censorship or discipline. 

The concept of academic freedom is accompanied by an equally important concept of academic 

responsibility. The faculty member at a public institution of higher education in West Virginia is a 

citizen, a member of a learned profession, and a representative of an educational institution. As such, 

a faculty member, together with all other members of the academic community, has the 

responsibility for protecting, defending, and promoting individual academic freedom for all 

members of the community. The faculty member has the responsibility of contributing to 

institutional and departmental missions in teaching, research, and service as defined by the 

institution. The faculty member is responsible alsoalso responsible as a teacher for striving to speak 

with accuracy and with respect for the similar rights and responsibilities of others. In speaking only 

as an individual or for a limited group, the faculty member should not imply or claim to be a 

spokesperson for the institution in which he or she holds an appointment. 

In addition to meeting the primary responsibilities of addressing institutional missions in teaching, 

research, and service as defined by the institution, all faculty have an obligation to foster the quality, 

viability, and necessity of their programs. The financial stability of a program and the recruitment of 

an adequate number of students depend in part on the faculty. The common goal of quality must be 

nurtured, and responsibility for it shared by all. Integrity, objectivity, and service to the purposes and 

missions of the institution are expected. 

Faculty interests and skills change, disciplines evolve, and new professions or fields of study 

emerge. All faculty members are responsible for remaining current in their disciplines. All are 

encouraged to explore opportunities for further developing a versatile range of knowledge and skills 

that are important to the institution. Through individual initiative and faculty development programs, 

faculty members are encouraged to grow in competency in their own disciplines and strengthen their 

interests in related fields. 

As members of an academic community, faculty members also are also expected to participate in 

decisions concerning programs and in program-reviewprogram review processes. 

2.2. Responsibilities of Faculty Appointment 

2.2.1. Class Coverage and Faculty Absence 

If an instructor is unable to meet classes for any reason, s/he must ensure classes are adequately 

covered and notify his/her immediate supervisor.  Unexcused absences from scheduled classes may 

result in salary reductions.  All faculty absences, whether full are partial days, must be documented 

according to institutional procedure, located on Southern’s Intranet. 

138



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  16 | 24 

 

SIP-2484, Medical and Military Leaves of Absence, is the controlling policy procedure for long-term 

employee absences in compliance with the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA), SCP-2006, 

Employee Leave, WV Council for Community and Technical College Education, Title 135 

Procedural Rule, Series 38, Employee Leave, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 

(ADA). The procedure (SIP-2484) and subsequent forms explains the limits, acceptable reasons for 

faculty absences, and discusses faculty responsibility when absence is necessary.  Faculty employed 

after September 1999 are required to enroll in disability insurance as a condition of employment. 

Faculty members absent for 30 or more calendar days will be removed from the payroll.  At the end 

of the thirty-day absence, faculty who have enrolled for the disability coverage may begin receiveing 

short- term disability payments. 

The number of consecutive days of full or partial absence controls the type of paperwork required 

for the absence.  

• For absences of five (5) for fewer consecutive (full or partial) days, the faculty member must 

complete a Faculty Absence Report, which can be obtained from Human Resources. 

• For absence consisting of six (6) to ten (10) consecutive (full or partial) days – a faculty 

member must have a Return-to-Work Authorization/Medical Release Form in addition to the 

Faculty Absence Report.   

• For absence consisting of ten (10) or more consecutive (full or partial) days, a faculty 

member must complete a Request for Medical Leave of Absence (SIP-2484). Upon return to 

work, the faculty member must present a completed Return to Work Authorization/Medical 

Release Form. 

It is very important that faculty members familiarize themselves with SIP-2484 - Medical Leave of 

Absence.  If you have questions about any policy and how it affects you, please contact the Office of 

Human Resources Department. 

2.2.2. Faculty Office and Class Schedules 

Each full-time faculty member will complete an Office and Class Schedule Form, in accordance with 

SIP-3600, by the end of the first week of classes.  Full-time faculty shall distribute an Office and Class 

Schedule in the following manner: one copy to the Division Dean; one copy to their respective 

Administrative Assistant; one copy to the Executive Assistant to the Chief Academic Officer; one copy 

posted in a conspicuous location near the faculty member’s office entrance (on or near the door). This 

schedule is designed to provide general administrative information,: a schedule of all classes,;  and a  

timetable of all class times, office hours, and released time (if applicable).  The Division Dean has the 

responsibility to see that all faculty members in his/her division comply with this policy. 

2.2.3. Workload Requirements for Full-Time Faculty 

The West Virginia Council for Community and Technical College Education has established a 37.5-

hour work week for all full-time employees.   For full-time faculty members, a minimum of 22.5 hours 

shall be posted to indicate lecture, lab, clinical, and office hours.  The remaining time will be used to 

fulfill other college obligations. 

139

https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SIP-2484-Medical-and-Military-Leave-Procedure-01.24.23.pdf
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/WHD/legacy/files/fmlaen.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2006-Employee-Leave-02.06.24-Final.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2006-Employee-Leave-02.06.24-Final.pdf
https://wvctcs.edu/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/135-38.pdf
https://wvctcs.edu/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/135-38.pdf
https://www.eeoc.gov/fact-sheet/facts-about-americans-disabilities-act
https://www.eeoc.gov/fact-sheet/facts-about-americans-disabilities-act


F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  17 | 24 

 

The required 100% course load shall be 15 credit hours or its equivalent.  Each 3 credit3-credit hour 

course shall constitute a 20% load.  Lab hours shall be calculated on a 3:2 ratio (every lab hour shall 

constitute 66.67% of a lecture hour).  Detailed information on the class load formula and class sizes is 

contained in SCP-2875, Workload Requirements for Full-Time Faculty and Instructional Specialists. 

2.2.4. Requests for Release Time 

Full-time faculty members may, from time to time, be granted released release time from all or a 

portion of their teaching workload for the purpose of performing special assignments.  When released 

time is granted, the faculty member's total salary for both the released time assignment(s) and full-time 

teaching duties shall not exceed one hundred percent of the total remuneration for his full-time 

teaching workload.  Detailed information on requesting released time is contained in SCP-2748, 

Request for Release Time for Full-time Faculty, and SCP-2748.A, Request for Release Time Form for 

Full-time Faculty. 

2.3. Leave of Absence 

2.3.1. Medical Leave - Faculty schedules are such that medical and other appointments for the faculty 

member and his/her dependents can be scheduled during times the faculty member is not scheduled for 

class, office hours, clinicals, or committee meetings. As such, employees classified as “faculty” do not 

accrue traditional sick nor or annual leave.  However, if it becomes necessary for a faculty member to 

miss work due to his/her own medical condition or that of his/her family, the following policies apply. 

SIP-2484 Medical Leave - This policy covers absences mentioned above and addresses faculty 

responsibility for meeting scheduled work time and contains the “Faculty Absence Request/Report” 

form to be completed for absences of 5 for less. It contains the “Faculty Absence Request/Report” 

form to be completed for absences of 5 or fewer consecutive days and contains the necessary request 

forms and reports for absences of more than five consecutive days. 

2.3.2. Sabbatical Leave - Sabbatical leave is available is to provide the faculty with the opportunity for 

continued professional growth and new, or renewed, intellectual achievement through study, research, 

writing, creative work, and travel so that teaching effectiveness may be enhanced, scholarly usefulness 

increased, and the institution’s academic and service programs strengthened.  SCP-2810, Sabbatical 

Leave for Full Time Faculty and Instructional Specialists, and SCP-2810.A, Sabbatical Leave Request, 

contains contain eligibility criteria and applications application forms necessary to request sabbatical 

leave.    

2.4. Grievance Procedure 

Any grievance by a faculty member shall be handled expeditiously and fairly in order that good relations 

are maintained between the faculty and administration.  Southern’s grievance procedure is contained in 

West Virginia State Code §29-6A-1 6C-2-1, et seq. Nothing in this Handbook expands, limits, or seeks to 

replace the rights provided to all employees pursuant to the grievance procedure, or any other state or 

federal statute, policy, rule or regulation. 

2.5. Conduct, Discipline, and Grievance 

140

https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2875-Workload-Requirements-for-Full-time-Faculty-and-Instructional-Specialists-2.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2748-Request-for-Release-Time-for-Full-time-Faculty-Final-10.04.22.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2748-Request-for-Release-Time-for-Full-time-Faculty-Final-10.04.22.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2748.A-Release-Time-Request-Form-for-Full-time-Faculty-Final-10.04.22.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2748.A-Release-Time-Request-Form-for-Full-time-Faculty-Final-10.04.22.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2810-Sabbatical-Leave-for-Full-Time-Faculty-and-Instructional-Specialists-FINAL-02162021-1.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2810-Sabbatical-Leave-for-Full-Time-Faculty-and-Instructional-Specialists-FINAL-02162021-1.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2810.A-Sabbatical-Leave-Request-FINAL-02162021-1.pdf


F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  18 | 24 

 

On the occasion that employee performance or behavior falls below expectations, the supervisor or division 

chair shall use a progressive approach to behavior modification or performance improvement.  Progressive 

discipline is a flexible and graduated approach that gives the employee the choice and chance to correct 

behavior and performance.  It includes counseling or discussion with the employee to resolve the problem.  

If counseling is not effective, the employee may receive a series of warning letters, then a period of 

suspension, and finally, if the conduct or performance does not meet expectations, dismissal. (SCP-2400, 

Employee Conflict Resolution Policy). 

Immediate dismissal for cause is also possible under certain circumstances outlined in applicable policy 

(SCP-2900, Progressive Discipline). 

An employee who believes he/she has been disciplined unjustly may use the grievance procedure (W.Va. 

Code §29-6A-16C-2-1, et seq) to seek remedy. 

2.6. Termination of Employment 

Issues of elimination of faculty positions and termination of employment of faculty members are addressed 

in rules and policies of institutional governing boards/councils and Southern . 

Reduction-in-force policy and procedures for Southern West Virginia Community College are contained in 

SCP-2701, Reduction in Work Force Due to Financial Exigency/Faculty Personnel. 

Program reduction or elimination policy and procedures for the College are contained in SCP-2000, 

Elimination of Faculty Positions Due to Program Reduction or Elimination. 

The following information on retention was provided by Human Resources for publication in the faculty 

handbook. 

2.6.1. Tenure Track Faculty  

An appointment carries no assurance of reappointment, promotion, or tenure.  Reappointments are 

made solely at the discretion of the College, and the non-reappointment of a faculty member does 

not necessarily reflect on the faculty member's work record or behavior.  The determination to 

reappoint, or not to reappoint, will be based upon a review of the specific conditions relating to the 

position.  Unless an appointment is of a temporary nature for a fixed term, notice that a probationary 

appointment is not to be renewed shall be given to the faculty member in advance of the expiration 

of the appointment as follows: 

2.6.1.1. For those appointed on or before March 8, 2003, after the decision regarding retention or 

non-retention for the ensuing year has been made by the President or his/her designee, 

the tenure-track faculty member shall be notified in writing of the decision; by letter 

post-marked and mailed no later than December 15 of the second academic year of 

services; and by letter post-marked and mailed at least one year before the expiration of 

an appointment after two or more years of service at Southern. 

2.6.1.2. For those appointed after March 9, 2003, after the decision regarding retention or non-

retention for the ensuring ensuing year has been made by the President or his/her 

designee, the tenure-track faculty member shall be notified in writing of the decision by 

letter post-marked and mailed no later than March 1. 

141



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  19 | 24 

 

2.6.2. Tenured Faculty 

Cause for discharge, termination of employment, or demotion in rank of tenured faculty members 

shall be affected only for cause.  Causes for dismissal may include demonstrated incompetence or 

dishonesty in the performance of professional duties, including but not limited to academic 

misconduct; conduct which directly and substantially impairs the individual’s fulfillment of 

institutional responsibilities, including but not limited to verified instances of sexual harassment, or 

of racial, gender-related, or other discriminatory practices; insubordination by refusal to abide by 

legitimate reasonable directions of administrators; physical or mental disability for which no 

reasonable accommodation can be made, and which makes the faculty member unable, within a 

reasonable degree of medical certainty and by reasonably determined medical opinion, to perform 

assigned duties; substantial and manifest neglect of duty; and failure to return at the end of a leave of 

absence. 

2.6.3. Term Faculty 

Term faculty members are appointed for a specified term defined by the College.  While a full-time 

term faculty member is eligible to receive reappointment to additional terms, no number of term 

appointments shall create any presumption of a right to appointment as tenure-track or tenured 

faculty.  These appointments are for a specified period of time as set forth in the notice of 

appointment.  Appointment or reappointment to a term faculty position shall create no right or 

expectation of continued appointment beyond the period of appointment or reappointment.  

Employment of the term faculty member ends at the expiration of the term specified in the written 

appointment, and no prior notice by administration is required. 

2.6.4. Financial Exigency 

In the event Southern declares a state of financial exigency, which is verified by the West Virginia 

Council for Community and Technical College Education staff and the Council concurs in this 

assessment, the normal termination procedures described above will be suspended.  In the event of a 

financial emergency, termination procedures and timetables for members of the academic 

community will be determined in accordance with the College policy addressing reduction in 

workforce for faculty, SCP 2701.  The President will present this plan to the Board of Governors for 

final approval prior to its implementation. 

2.6.5. Administrative Staff 

Administrative staff members serve in their administrative positions at the will and pleasure of the 

President of the College. 

2.7. Abandonment of Employment 

Faculty who refuses refuse to sign or execute an offered annual notice of appointment or reappointment by 

the date indicated by the institution for its execution, or who fail to undertake the duties under such 

document at a reasonable time, shall be deemed to have abandoned their employment with the College and 

any rights to tenure or future appointment.  Faculty objecting to the terms of such document do does not 

waive their objections to such terms by signing or executing the document. 

142



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  20 | 24 

 

2.8. Faculty Resignations 

A faculty member desiring to terminate an existing appointment during or at the end of the academic year, 

or to decline reappointment, should complete an academic term and provide forty-five (45) calendar days’ 

written notice of resignation before the beginning of an academic term. Professional ethics dictate due 

consideration of the institution’s need to have a full complement of faculty throughout the academic year. 

2.9. Information for Part-Time Faculty 

Instructional faculty teaching on a part-time basis is required to possess academic credentials and 

competencies comparable to the full-time instructional faculty.  Classroom conduct, student expectations, 

preparation, and grading policies and procedures will likewise be comparable.  Part-time and full-time 

faculty will be governed by the provisions of the Instructor Responsibilities section of this handbook.  The 

principal difference between part-time and full-time instructional staff is the employment relationship 

between the faculty member and the College 

2.9.1. Employment-Related Responsibilities of Part-Time Faculty 

2.9.1.1. Submit a completed application with the required information.  These documents 

(including official transcripts) must be on file in the Human Resources Office by the first 

day of actual employment with the College. 

2.9.1.2. The Division Dean will complete and send to Human Resources the Faculty Credential 

Verification form together with the instructor’s credentials. 

2.9.1.3. Furnish a completed, signed W-9 form to the Accounting Office and all completed 

payroll documentation to the Payroll Office. 

2.9.2. Contractual Information – Adjunct Agreements 

Part-time teaching contracts are awarded on a course-by-course basis for a term not to exceed one 

semester per contract period.  No continuation of employment, either part-time or full-time, is stated 

or implied under the terms of the Adjunct Faculty Agreement.  The instructor signs an Adjunct 

Faculty Agreement each semester.  This contract is contingent upon sufficient enrollment in the 

course(s).  If there is not sufficient enrollment or if the College assigns or reassigns a full-time 

instructor to teach the courses covered by the contract, the Adjunct Faculty Agreement shall be 

canceled, and the instructor sobe notified.  The Adjunct Faculty Agreement may be canceled by the 

College for reasons of professional incompetence or otherwise unsatisfactory service.  Failure to 

meet College requirements, including time schedules for classes and the completion of all rolls and 

grades, will result in the withholding of any salary due until satisfactory completion of such 

responsibilities. 

2.9.3. Payroll Information – Adjunct Faculty Agreements 

Paychecks/direct deposit statements for teaching credit courses will be issued twice per semester, 

i.e., mid-term and the end of the semester.  Paychecks/direct deposit statements for teaching non-

credit atypical courses will be issued on the appropriate pay period following the end of the course.   

143



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  21 | 24 

 

The Payroll Office encourages direct deposit to faculty who are not utilizing this benefit.  Funds are 

deposited into your checking account on payday.  Contact the Human Resources office for information 

on direct deposit enrollment. 

3. Title IX Nondiscrimination Policy 

3.1. Title IX Nondiscrimination Policy Statement 

The Southern does not discriminate on the basis of sex in the education program or activity that it operates. 

Southern, as a recipient of federal financial assistance, is required by Title IX of the Education 

Amendments of 1972 (“Title IX”) and 34 C.F.R. § 106 (“Title IX regulations”) not to discriminate in such 

a manner. The requirement not to discriminate in Southern’s education programs or activities extends to 

admission and employment, and inquiries about the application of Title IX and the Title IX regulations to 

Southern may be referred to Southern’s Title IX Coordinator. 

3.2. Title IX Coordinator 

Southern has designated and authorized Darrell Taylor, Director of Admissions and Student ActivitiesChief 

Student Services Officer, as Title IX Coordinator to coordinate Southern’s efforts to comply with its 

responsibilities under Title IX, 34 C.F.R. § 106,22 and other federal and state sex discrimination and sexual 

harassment laws. The Title IX Coordinator’s contact information is as follows: 

Campus office address: Logan Campus, Building B, Room 205, 100 College Drive, Logan, WV 25601 

E-mail address: Darrell.Taylor@southernwv.edu 

Title IX report/complaint email address: TitleIX@southernwv.edu 

Office telephone number: (304) 896-7432 

 

4. Faculty Emeritus 

The institution may, at the time of a faculty member’s retirement, confer upon that individual the Emeritus 

Status. This honor is granted selectively in recognition of meritorious service. Sothern’s Emeritus Policy is 

outlined in SCP-2901 and SCP-2901.A, Professor Emeritus Status and Nomination Form. 

4.1. Definition of Entitlements 

Emeritus faculty members shall be entitled to: 

1. Maintain a Southern ID Card upon request. 

2. Maintain their respective Southern e-mail account, if desired. 

3. Full access to the Southern’s Library facilities. 

4. A listing of this status in Southern’s Catalog. 

5. Invitation to college events. 

6. Invited to attend Board of Governor’s meetings and general sessions and lunch attended by all 

employees on Governance Day’s. 

7. If rehired as part-time faculty, they shall receive a pay rate 10% above normal adjunct faculty pay rates. 

144

https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2901-and-2901A-Professor-Emeritus-Status-and-Nomination-Form.pdf


F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  22 | 24 

 

4.2. Process 

4.2.1. A recommendation is initiated by a member of the faculty, staff, or community of Southern by 

submitting form SCP-2901.A to Faculty Senate by December 31 of each year. 

4.2.2. Faculty Senate will consider all nominations and provide their recommendations to the President by 

March 31. 

4.2.3. The President will make a final decision no later than May 1. 

4.3. Title 

Titles using “Emeritus” (for males) or “Emerita” (for females) are constructed by placing the modifier after 

the rank and title held at the time of retirement: e.g., “Associate Professor Emeritus.” 

SECTION V – FACULTY EVALUATION, PROMOTION, AND TENURE 

The Southern is primarily a teaching institution. In order to be considered for retention, tenure, or promotion, a 

faculty member must demonstrate appropriate teaching performance, professional development, and service to the 

institution. 

Faculty evaluation is a continuous process, and its purpose is to provide a climate for all instructional personnel to 

reach their maximum professional potential and improve their classroom performance. All full-time faculty are 

evaluated annually by their respective Dean or Director. All adjunct and dual credit faculty shall be evaluated each 

semester on the basis of their primary responsibilities in teaching and limited institutional responsibility. Evaluation 

of classroom performance shall be based on classroom visits and other appropriate observations. Details of the 

evaluation process and associated forms are found in SCP-2218, Evaluation of Full-time, Adjunct, and Dual Credit 

Faculty, and SCP-2218.A, Evaluation and Goal Planning Document. 

Southern has established SCP-2686, Promotion and Tenure Policy, and SCP-2686.A, Promotion and Tenure 

Criteria and Forms, and associated forms for making recommendations and/or decisions regarding promotions-in-

rank and tenure for full time faculty members of Southern. This issuance applies to all full-time faculty members of 

Southern who hold faculty rank of instructor or above. Certain sections of the issuance apply to all full-time faculty 

while others may be specific to only tenure-track, tenured, or term faculty individually. 

 

  

145

https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2218.-Evaluation-of-Faculty-Final-Approval-6.17.24.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2218.-Evaluation-of-Faculty-Final-Approval-6.17.24.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2218A.-Faculty-Evaluation-Forms-Final-Approval-6.17.24.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2686.-Promotion-and-Tenure-Policy-Final-Approval-6.17.24.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2686A.-Promotion-and-Tenure-Criteria-and-Forms-Final-Approval-6.17.24.pdf
https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-2686A.-Promotion-and-Tenure-Criteria-and-Forms-Final-Approval-6.17.24.pdf


F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  23 | 24 

 

SECTION VI – SUPPORT SERVICES FOR FACULTY 

 

1. What faculty members may expect from the college: 

Southern recognizes its responsibility to assist instructors in meeting the goals of the institution.  The 

College will: 

1.1 Notify instructors of applicable College policies and procedures. 

1.2 Provide orientation and professional development activities. 

1.3 Provide access to appropriate technology and duplication services. 

1.4 Provide all supplies needed for instruction. 

1.5 Provide ongoing administrative support from the Division Dean and/or Directors of Campus 

Operations to ensure that instruction and support services of the highest quality are provided to all 

students. 

 

2. Online Teaching Support 

The Director of Distance Education is available to assist faculty with the use of technology in the delivery of 

instruction and provide an outlet for professional development in teaching practice and pedagogy. 

 

Faculty are encouraged to contact the Director of Distance Education to assist with any instructional 

delivery method. 

 

The Director of Distance Education and staff will: 

 

2.1 Assist instructional personnel in the design and production of instructional materials and courseware 

to support curriculum needs. 

 

2.2 Aid instructional personnel in integrating technology into the instructional process. 

 

2.3 Apply learning theory to the design, development, and evaluation of technology for instructional use. 

 

2.4 Assist instructional personnel in the selection of effective and efficient instructional strategies for 

computer-based teaching and learning. 

 

2.5 Develop and maintain timelines for design, development, and evaluation of computer modules. 

 

2.6 Aid in field-testing computer-based instructional modules. 

 

2.7 Lead and/or coordinate faculty development seminars and workshops for those interested in 

developing computer-based instructional materials. 

 

For more information on Distance Education, contact:  

Tim Owens, Director of Distance Education 

Williamson Campus 

(304) 236-7642 

Tim.Owens@southernwv.edu  

146



F a c u l t y  H a n d b o o k  S A M - 2 0 2 4 . 1  ( 1 1 / 2 0 2 4 )                                   P a g e  24 | 24 

 

3. Course Content 

 

Southern’s platform for delivering course material online for all course offerings is Brightspace.  Any faculty 

member interested in developing a course for online, hybrid, or hyflex delivery or using Brightspace as a course 

supplement should contact Tim Owens, Director of Distance Education at (304) 236-7642. 

 

4. Technology use at Southern 

Faculty are encouraged to incorporate technology to assist with instructional delivery. Courses at Southern are 

taught in on several platforms in addition to regular classroom instruction.  Examples of these platforms include 

modular delivery, online courses, and courses delivered via Zoom. 

 

5. Duplication Services 

 

Reproduction equipment is available at various locations on campus for instructors to make copies of 

instructional material.  This equipment should be used for small jobs.  All work to be performed by the division 

secretary must be submitted one week in advance of the date needed to allow sufficient time for reproduction 

and handling. 

 

6. Library 

Southern students have access to a growing collection of books, periodicals, and other materials at both the 

Logan Campus and the Williamson Campus.  Librarians are available on both campuses to aid the students and 

faculty members.  Operational hours for each library are posted each semester, including summer and weekend 

hours (if applicable.) 

 

The librarians on both campuses urge all faculty members, full- and part-time, to become involved in 

developing the library collections by regularly suggesting new book books and periodical titles.  Part-time 

faculty, where the part-time faculty member may be the only person teaching a particular subject, are also asked 

to become involved in library collection development.  

 

Bibliographic instruction is available to both individuals and to groups.  Faculty members are urged to request a 

general library tour for each of their classes or one that is tailored specifically to the needs of that class.  Contact 

a campus librarian to arrange for one of these tours. 

 

7. Textbooks 

The college has established policies and procedures covering textbook selection and acquisition, which can be 

found in SCP-5074, Selection, Adoption, Use and Sale of Textbooks and Other Course Materials. 

 

147

https://www.southernwv.edu/wp-content/uploads/SCP-5074-Selection-Adoption-Use-and-Sale-of-Textbooks-and-Other-Course-Materials-01.24.23.pdf


SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
MEETING OF DECEMBER 17, 2024 
 
 
ITEM: SCP-1091, Classified Staff Council Constitution 
 
RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION: RESOLVED, That the Southern West Virginia 

Community and Technical College Board of 
Governors grant approval for distribution of SCP-
1091, Classified Staff Council Constitution, to 
Southern’s constituents and the Chancellor for 
Community and Technical College Education for the 
required 30-day public comment period. 

 
STAFF MEMBER:  Debbie C. Dingess 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
SCP-1091, Classified Staff Council Constitution, was revised and reviewed by the Classified Staff 
Council and Classified Staff at Large and submitted to the Policies and Procedures Committee 
on February 9, 2024. The Policies and Procedures Committee returned the Constitution to the 
Classified Staff Council, recommending they include at least two non-classified employees to the 
membership roster. After the policy was revised and ratified by the Classified Staff, it was 
reviewed by the Policies and Procedures Committee at its November 8, 2024, meeting and 
forwarded to the President’s Cabinet. 
 
At its meeting on December 3, 2024, the President’s Cabinet granted approval for the 
advancement of SCP-1091, Classified Staff Council Constitution, to the Southern West Virginia 
Community and Technical College Board of Governors.  
 
Therefore, the staff recommends that the Board of Governors of Southern West Virginia 
Community and Technical College grant approval of SCP-1091, Classified Staff Council 
Constitution, for advancement to Southern’s constituents and the Chancellor for Community and 
Technical College Education for the required 30-day public comment period. 

148



SCP-1091, Classified Staff Council Constitution                                                                                           Page 1 of 6 
 

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

SCP-1091 

 
SUBJECT: Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council Constitution 

 

REFERENCE: WV Code §18B-6-6; SIP-1091.A, Classified Staff Council Proxy Form 

 

ORIGINATION: November 18, 2003 

 

EFFECTIVE: November 1, 2018 

 

REVIEWED: March 13, 2018February 9, 2024November 8, 2024 

 
 

SECTION 1. PURPOSE 

 

1.1 To establish the Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council of Southern West Virginia Community 

and Technical College toand identify representation for the Classified  Classified Staff Council, and set out 

the election procedures for the same. 

 

SECTION 2. SCOPE AND APPLICABILITY 

 

2.1 This policy applies to all classified and non-classified staff employees (excluding members of the President’s 

Cabinet) of Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College. 

 

SECTION 3. DEFINITIONS 

 

3.1 Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council – An elected body whose purpose is to represent classified 

the staffstaff, to consider and recommend policy regarding staff welfare, and individual staff suggestions 

and problems. 

 

3.2 Classified Employee – Any regular full-time or regular part-time employee who holds a position that is 

assigned a particular job title and pay grade in accordance with the personnel classification system and does 

not meet the duties test for exempt status under the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act; and is not 

otherwise a non-classified employee; provided that, any employee who was a classified employee as of 

January 1, 2017, retains that status unless otherwise deemed a non-classified employee. 

  

3.23.3 Non-Classified Employee – An employee who serves at the will and pleasure of the organization and meets 

one or more of the following criteria: (a) holds a direct policy-making position; (b) reports directly to the 

President; (c) is critical to the organization pursuant to policies or decisions adopted by the governing board; 

(d) is an information technology-related position adopted by a governing board; (e) hired after July 1, 2017 

in a position that meets the duties test for exempt status of the Fair Labor Standards Act when hired or 

anytime thereafter; or (f) in a non-classified position as of January 1, 2017 who may not meet any of the 

previous criteria. 

 

SECTION 4. POLICY 

 

4.1 Functions of the Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council shall include, but not be limited to the 

following: 

 

4.1.1 Representation to college and professional organizations; classified classified staff development; 

149



SCP-1091, Classified Staff Council Constitution                                                                                           Page 2 of 6 
 

and other issues of concern which that may arise involving the classified classified staff individually 

or collectively. 

 

4.1.2 Review and make recommendations as necessary regarding institutional policies and procedures. 

 

4.1.3 Bring concerns of classified classified staff to the attention of the college community, administration, 

and the Board of Governors. 

 

4.1.4 Stimulate and strengthen morale and employee satisfaction of classified classified staff. 

 

4.1.5 Support Southern’s effort in accomplishing its mission and vision. 

 

4.2 Membership 

4.2.1 The Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council shall consist of 1618 voting members 

representing the following geographic and primary occupational activity distribution: 

 

1—Logan Campus  

1—Williamson Campus  

1—Boone/Lincoln Campus  

1—Wyoming/McDowell Campus 

1—Advisory Council of Classified Employees Representative 

1—Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council Chair 

2—Administrative / Managerial Sector 

2—Professional / Non-teaching Sector 

2—Paraprofessional Sector  

2—Secretarial / Clerical Sector  

2—Physical Plant / Maintenance Sector 

2—Non-Classified Staff at Large  

 

4.2.2 Each must be a member of the classified staff and non-classified staff (excluding members of the 

President’s Cabinet) and shall be elected to serve a two-year term, which begins on the first day of 

July of each odd-numbered year. Members of the Classified SClassified Staff Council are eligible 

to succeed themselves. 

 

4.2.3 Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council members cannot hold more than one position on the 

Council per term. 

 

4.2.4 The Classified Staff Board of Governors representative will serve as an ex-officioex-officio, non-

voting member of the Council. 

 

4.2.5 Resignations must be in writing to the Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council Chair with 

copies sent to each of the Council members. 

 

4.3 Meetings 

4.3.1 All classified employees shall meet in April of each odd-numbered year for the purpose of electing 

members of the Classified Staff Council. 

 

4.3.24.3.1 Rules of Order – The rules contained in Robert’s Rules of Order shall govern the Classified 

Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council unless otherwise stated by this constitution or agreed upon by 

the Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council. 

 

4.3.34.3.2 The Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council shall meet no less than once monthly. 

Any classified sclassified staff member may petition the Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff 

150



SCP-1091, Classified Staff Council Constitution                                                                                           Page 3 of 6 
 

Council to meet or hear proposals or complaints. At any regular or special meeting, a majority of 

the elected members shall constitute a quorum. All meetings are open to all  Classified 

StaffClassified Staff. 

 

4.3.44.3.3 Members of the Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council may vote on issues either 

in person, by electronic means, or by written proxy. The proxy form, SIP-1091.Awritten proxy 

must be presented to the Council Chair or Vice Chair prior to the meeting. Proxy votes shall be 

considered in establishing a quorum. 

 

4.3.54.3.4 The President of the institution shall meet at least quarterly with the Classified Staff 

CouncilClassified Staff Council. 

 

4.3.64.3.5 The Governing Board shall meet at least annually with the Classified Staff CouncilClassified 

Staff Council. 

 

4.4 Committees 

 

4.4.1 The Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council shall have the authority to establish 

committees and other appointed positions and to establish rules of for such committees and 

positions in accordance with the realms of functioning, membership, and charge. 

 

4.5 Reporting of Council Resolutions and Decisions 

 

4.5.1 The Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council, through the regular meetings, shall report 

directly to the Classified  Staff body. In areas regarding the welfare of the entire college, the 

Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council through its representative, shall report directly to 

the President. 

 

4.6 Absenteeism 

 

4.6.1 Any Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council member who misses three (3) consecutive 

meetings without notifying the Chairperson or Secretary of their absence and without presenting a 

proxy will be subject to dismissal from their elected position on the Classified Staff CouncilClassified 

Staff Council. , and tThe individual from the same geographic location and/or primary occupational 

activity from the same category who ranked next highest in the vote tally shall be appointed in their 

place. 

 
SECTION 5. BACKGROUND OR EXCLUSIONS 

 

5.1 None. 

 

SECTION 6. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

6.1 Ratification 

 

6.1.1 The Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council Constitution shall be ratified upon two-thirds 

approval of Classified Staff members as defined in 2.1 Scope and Applicability. 

 

6.2 Amendments 

 

6.2.1 The Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council Constitution shall be amended upon two-

thirds majority approval of the Classified Classified Staff members. 

 

151



SCP-1091, Classified Staff Council Constitution                                                                                           Page 4 of 6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION 7. RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

7.1 Nominations 

 

7.1.1 During March of each odd-numbered year, the Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council Vice 

Chair shall contact all classified staff for the purpose of nominating staff for the following positions: 

Advisory Council of Classified Employees Representative, Chair to the Classified Staff 

CouncilClassified Staff Council, Classified Staff Representative to the Institutional Board of 

Governors, and other positions to which the classified classified staff is represented on college 

councils and committees. The nominations must be returned to the Vice Chair in person or by 

electronicelectronically means by the predetermined deadline (reference the Governance 

Handbook). 

 

7.1.2 Those nominated will be contacted by the Vice Chair. Upon notification, nominated individuals will 

be given twenty-four (24) hours in which to confirm/decline their desire to be placed on the ballot. 

Those who do not respond in writing or by e-mail will be omitted from the election nominations. 

 

7.1.3 Those who are confirmed nominees will be placed on the official election ballot. 

 

7.2 Election Ballots 

 

7.2.1 The election ballot will be developed by the Vice Chair from the names of those nominated and 

confirmed. The ballots will be distributed for a final vote at the classified staff meeting as specified 

in section 4.3.1 by electronic means during the month of April of each odd-numbered year.  Election 

ballots may be distributed electronically. 

 

7.3 Absentee Balloting 

 

7.3.1 Absentee ballots will be preprinted. Those who request to vote by absentee ballot must present 

documentation from the President’s Office of the approved absence. The ballot must be returned to 

the Vice Chair or designee by the predetermined date. 

 

7.3.2 Absentee ballots will be opened during the election by the Chair of the Classified Staff 

CouncilClassified Staff Council or by the Vice Chair. 

 

7.4 Election 

 

7.4.1 Ballots will be distributed during the meeting in April inviting each classified staff member to vote 

for representation of all elected positions. 

 

7.4.2 The individual receiving the highest number of votes in each geographic location and primary 

occupational activitycategory shall be declared elected, based on the number of representatives 

allowed as established in section 4.2. 

 

7.4.3 In the event of a change in primary occupational activity, geographic location category, resignation, 

or other unforseen unforeseen circumstance that prevents the elected staff member from performing 

the duties of the position, the classified staff member from the same geographic location and/or 

primary occupational activitycategory who ranked next highest in the vote tally shall be appointed. 

152



SCP-1091, Classified Staff Council Constitution                                                                                           Page 5 of 6 
 

 

7.5 Council Officers 

 

7.5.1 Titles 

7.5.1.1 There shall be two officers of the Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council. 

7.5.1.1.1 Chair who will be elected at large by the Classified Classified Staff. 

7.5.1.1.2 Vice Chair who will be elected by Council members at the first Classified Staff 

CouncilClassified Staff Council meeting of the next fiscal year following the 

Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council elections. 

 

7.5.2 A Recorder to the Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council   will be assigned by the 

President’s Officeshall be elected from among the members of the Classified Staff CouncilClassified 

Staff Council. 

 

7.5.3 Duties 

7.5.3.1 The Chair shall perform the following duties: 

7.5.3.1.1 Establish the agenda for all Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council 

meetings and all other special purpose meetings of the Classified Staff 

CouncilClassified Staff Council. 

7.5.3.1.2 Preside over all Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council meetings. 

7.5.3.1.3 Represent the Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council at College 

meetings. 

 

7.5.3.2 The Vice Chair shall perform the following duties: 

7.5.3.2.1 Preside over Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council meetings in the 

absence of the Chair. 

7.5.3.2.2 Schedule and conduct Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council elections. 

7.5.3.2.3 Preserve all election records. 

 

7.5.3.3 The Recorder shall perform the following duties: 

7.5.3.3.1 Preserve a record of the Classified Staff CouncilClassified Staff Council 

meetings. 

7.5.3.3.2 Post meeting minutes and other relevant materials to the Classified Staff 

CouncilClassified Staff Council’s shared (S) drive college designatedcollege-

designated electronic portal for the members of the classifiedthe classified  

staff. 

7.5.3.3.3 Post the agenda, meeting minutes, and other relevant documents to the “S” drive 

college designatedcollege-designated electronic portal in the appropriate 

Governance Committee folder for documentation purposes. 

7.5.3.3.4 Send the official original signed minutes to the President’s Office within seven (7) 

business days of approval. 

 

SECTION 8. CANCELLATION 

 

8.1  Supercedes SCI 1672, Classified Staff Council Constitution and SCI 1672.01, Classified Staff Council 

Constitution Appendix.None. 

 

SECTION 9. REVIEW STATEMENT 

 

9.1  This policy shall be reviewed on a regular basis with a time frame for review to be determined by the 

President or the President’s designee. Upon such review, the President or President’s designee may 

recommend to the Board that the policy be amended or repealed. 

 

153



SCP-1091, Classified Staff Council Constitution                                                                                           Page 6 of 6 
 

SECTION 10. SIGNATURES 

 

Board of Governors Chair Date 
 

 

 

President Date 
 

Attachments: None 

 

Distribution: Board of Governors (12 members) 

www.southernwv.edu 

 
Revision Notes: November 18, 2003 – Policy originated to supercede supersede SCI 1672 and SCI 1672.01. 

 
December 13, 2006 – Revisions reflect no substantial changes in procedure or documentation 

requirements. Revisions were made to coincide with changes in West Virginia Code concerning 

meetings and membership. 

 

March 4, 2009 – Revisions reflect a clarification of membership representation with no substantial 

changes in procedures. 

 

December 7, 2011 – Revisions allow for proxy voting at meetings, address issues with excessive 

absenteeism, and permit electronic voting pertaining to nominations and elections. 

 

March 13, 2018 – Revisions reflect minor technical changes, as well as changes in the 

nomination, election, and voting procedures. The titles of officers and duties of each position 

were clarified. 

 

February 9, 2014November 8, 2024 – Revisions reflect changes to responsibilities, to include 

electronic election ballots, including electronic election ballots, change in title of the council, 

to include non-classified employees in the membership roster, and to correct grammar. 
 

154

http://www.southernwv.edu/


SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
MEETING OF DECEMBER 17, 2024 
 
 
ITEM: SCP-1160, Philosophy on Diversity, Equity, and 

Inclusion 
 
RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION: RESOLVED, That the Southern West Virginia 

Community and Technical College Board of 
Governors grant approval for distribution of SCP-
1160, Philosophy on Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion, 
to Southern’s constituents and the Chancellor for 
Community and Technical College Education for the 
required 30-day public comment period. 

 
STAFF MEMBER:  Debbie C. Dingess 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
SCP-1160, Philosophy on Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion, was reviewed by the Policies and 
Procedures Committee at its meeting on November 8, 2024, with the recommendation to forward 
the policy to the President’s Cabinet. Revisions to the policy include the updated ACCT 
Commitment to Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion and the current AACC Framework for Action.  It 
redefines the definitions and includes minor corrections in grammar.  At its meeting on December 
3, 2024, the President’s Cabinet granted approval for the advancement of SCP-1160, Philosophy 
on Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion, to the Southern West Virginia Community and Technical 
College Board of Governors.  
 
Therefore, the staff recommends that the Board of Governors of Southern West Virginia 
Community and Technical College grant approval of SCP-1160, Philosophy on Diversity, Equity, 
and Inclusion, for advancement to Southern’s constituents and the Chancellor for Community and 
Technical College Education for the required 30-day public comment period. 

155



SCP-1160, Diversity PhilosophyPhilosophy on Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Page 1 of 4  

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

SCP-1160 

 
SUBJECT: Diversity PhilosophyPhilosophy on Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion 

 
REFERENCE: The American Association of Community Colleges (AACC), Position Statement on 

Inclusion Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion: Framework for Action, September 2020 

(http://www.aacc.nche.edu); AACC and ACCT (Association of Community College 

Trustees) Joint Statement of Commitment to Equity, Diversity, and Excellence in Student 

Success and Leadership Development (http://www.aacc.nche.edu); and ACCT 

Commitment to Diversity, Equity and Inclusion, June 12, 2020 (http://www.acct.org) 

 

ORIGINATION: August 20, 1998 

 

EFFECTIVE: January 15, 2021 

 

REVIEWED: July 14, 2020November 8, 2024 
 

SECTION 1. PURPOSE 

 

1.1  To communicate support for, and adoption of the American Association of Community Colleges’ (AACC) 

“Position Statement on InclusionDiversity, Equity, and Inclusion: Framework for Action,,” and the AACC 

and ACCT (Association of Community College Trustees) Joint Statement of Commitment to Equity, 

Diversity, and Excellence in Student Success and Leadership Development, and the ACCT Commitment 

to Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion. 

 
SECTION 2. SCOPE AND APPLICABILITY 

 

2.1  This policy applies to all programs, processes, employees, departments, units, committees, councils, and 

boards associated with Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College. 

 

SECTION 3. DEFINITIONS 

 

3.1 Diversity – A commitment to valuing and promoting differences, similarities, and characteristics that make 

groups and individuals unique in an atmosphere that promotes and celebrates individual and collective 

achievement. Examples of these characteristics are age, cognitive style, culture, disability (mental, learning, 

or physical), economic background, education, ethnicity, gender identity, geographic background, 

language(s) spoken, marital/partnered status, physical appearance, political affiliation, race, religious beliefs, 

and sexual orientation. 

 

3.13.2 Equity – Consistent and systematic fair, just, and impartial treatment of all individuals, including 

individuals who belong to underserved communities that have been denied such treatment, such as women 

and girls, Black, Latino, and Indigenous and Native American persons, Asian Americans and Pacific 

Islanders and other persons of color; persons facing discrimination or barriers on account of gender identify; 

members of religious minorities, lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, and queer (LGBTQ+) persons; persons 

with disabilities; persons who live in rural areas; and persons otherwise adversely affected by persistent 

poverty or inequality. 

 

3.23.3 Inclusion – Involves empowering and leveraging diversity in the workforce and student body by enabling 

individuals to contribute to their fullest potential through individual development, retention, and pluralistic 

work and educational processes. Marginalized groups can refer to individuals or communities that are 

156

http://www.aacc.nche.edu/


SCP-1160, Diversity PhilosophyPhilosophy on Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Page 2 of 4  

systemically disadvantaged or excluded from mainstream social, economic, political, or cultural 

opportunities due to various factors such as identity, background, or status. The goal of inclusion is to ensure 

that these groups are not left out and have equal access to rights, resources, and opportunities. 

 

3.4 Pluralistic Work and Educational Processes – Work/education methods practiced in participation, 

consideration, and respect for members of diverse ethnic, racial, religious, or social groups. 

  

3.5 Underserved Communities – Populations sharing a particular characteristic, as well as geographic 

communities, that have been systematically denied a full opportunity to participate in aspects of economic, 

social, and civic life, as exemplified by the list in the preceding definition of “Equity.” 

  

3.33.6 Marginalized Groups – Groups of people who are subject to discrimination and exclusion in society, often 

based on characteristics such as race, gender, sexual orientation, disability, people of color, LGBTQ+, 

indigenous peoples, or people of a lower socio-economic status. 

 

SECTION 4. POLICY 

 

4.1 Southern believes that community colleges provide access to a broad spectrum of quality educational 

opportunities and life experiences. The College values diversity as an enhancement of those experiences in 

its classrooms, administrative offices, and board rooms. Southern is committed to policies that promote 

fairness and inclusion for all in the life of the College. 

 

4.2 Southern is committed to fostering the advancement of community colleges, in part, by applying principles 

of equity and diversity within its organizations and promoting theses values throughout the institution. 

Southern will foster an environment that honors, respects, and embraces the variety of its students; will create 

and maintain educational environments that are safe, respectful, and responsive and that will allow the 

students to attain their highest potential. 

 

4.3 As a reflection of Southern’s commitment to equity, diversity, and excellence in student success and 

leadership development, it strives to promote fairness and inclusion in its own policies and practices. 

 
SECTION 5. BACKGROUND OR EXCLUSIONS 

 

5.1 None 

 
SECTION 6. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

6.1 Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College strongly endorses the continued use of 

admissions guidelines and employment practices that promote broad diversity in community colleges. 

Southern will pursue standards and guidelines which allow it to fulfill its diversitythat allow it to fulfill its 

diverse missions and visions. The students we educate will help provide tomorrow’s leaders, and their 

college experience must demonstrate the richness and substance of our diverse, multi-cultural, and global 

environment. The college environment should promote understanding and appreciation of others, while 

encouraging students to grow as individuals. 

 
6.2 Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College reaffirms its commitment to diversity. In 

accordance with this philosophy, Southern strives to continually evaluate its hiring, admissions, and financial 

aid policies to ensure diversity and equal access within the institution. The College strives to ensure that the 

results of these evaluations conform to the concept of open access - the cornerstone of the community 

college mission. 

 
6.3 Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College believes that diversity is crucial to a democratic 

157



SCP-1160, Diversity PhilosophyPhilosophy on Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Page 3 of 4  

society. Southern will encourage and enhance the fullest understanding of human rights and responsibilities 

and should teach the skills that allow our students to effectively participateparticipate effectively in a 

democratic society. Southern is responsible for shaping an environment that mirrors the general culture and 

creates opportunities for all within the College community to interact with understanding, tolerance, and 

respect for others. In this way, diversity in education not only serves as a model for the world at large, but 

it also helps perpetuate social harmony for the future. 

 

6.4 Southern strongly endorses the adoption of policies and procedures designed to counteract and prevent hate 

crimes. Hate crimes are defined herein as crimes that manifest evidence of prejudice based on race, religion, 

sexual orientation, gender, or ethnicity, including, where appropriate, the crimes of murder, non-negligent 

manslaughter, forcible rape, aggravated assault, simple assault, intimidation, arson, and destruction, damage 

or vandalism of property. 

 

6.5 Southern’s belief, born of experience, is that diversity in its student body, faculty, and staff is important for 

it to fulfill its primary mission: providing a quality education. The reasons include: 

 

6.5.1 Diversity in the institution’s student body and workforce enriches the educational experience. We 

learn from those whose experiences, beliefs, and perspectives are different from our own, and these 

lessons can be taught best in a richly diverse intellectual and social environment. 

 

6.5.2 Diversity in the institution’s student body and workforce promotes personal growth and a healthy 

society. Diversity challenges stereotyped preconceptions; it encourages critical thinking; and it , 

encourages critical thinking, and helps students and employees learn to communicate effectively 

with people of varied backgrounds. 

 

6.5.3 Diversity in the student body and workforce strengthens communities and the workplace. Education 

within a diverse setting prepares students to become good citizens in an increasingly complex, 

pluralistic society; it fosters mutual respect and teamwork, and it helps build communities whose 

members are judged by the quality of their character and their contributions. 

 

6.5.4 Diversity in the student body and workforce enhances America’s economic competitiveness. 

Sustaining the nation’s prosperity in the 21st century will require us to make effective use of the 

talents and abilities of all our citizens, in work settings that bring together individuals from diverse 

backgrounds and cultures. 

 

6.6 Achieving diversity on our campuses does not require quotas. Nor does diversity warrant admission of 

unqualified applicants. However, the diversity we seek, and the future of the nation, does and the future of 

the nation do require that we continue to be able to reach out and make a conscious effort to build healthy 

and diverse learning environments appropriate for our mission. The success of higher education and the 

strength of our democracy depend depends on it. 

 
SECTION 7. RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

7.1  All employees, supervisors, committees, councils, and boards making recommendations or decisions for 

the institution are responsible for supporting and promoting this diversity philosophy. 

 
SECTION 8. CANCELLATION 

 

8.1 None. 

 

 

 

158



SCP-1160, Diversity PhilosophyPhilosophy on Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Page 4 of 4  

 

 
SECTION 9. REVIEW STATEMENT 

 

9.1  This policy shall be reviewed on a regular basis with a time frame for review to be determined by the 

President or the President’s designee. Upon such review, the President or President’s designee may 

recommend to the Board that the policy be amended or repealed. 

 
SECTION 10. SIGNATURES 

 

 

 

 

Board of Governors Chair Date 
 

 

 

 

President Date 
 
 

Attachments: None. 

 

Distribution: Board of Governors (12 members) 

www.southernwv.edu 

 
Revision Notes: September 2000 – Reformatted policy to the MAP system. 

 
August 2010 – Revised to reflect current AACC Position Statement on Inclusion.  

July 2015 – Policy reviewed for accuracy and no modifications are needed. 

July 2020 – Revised to include the AACC and ACCT Joint Statement of Commitment to 

Equity, Diversity, and Excellence in Student Success and Leadership Development. 

 

November 2024 – Revised to include the ACCT Commitment to Diversity, Equity, and 

Inclusion, the current AACC Framework for Action, refined definitions, and corrections to 

grammar. 

159

http://www.southernwv.edu/


SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
MEETING OF DECEMBER 17, 2024 
 
 
ITEM: SCP-1400, Guest Speakers, Lecturers, Performers, 

and Organized Groups, and SCP-1400.A., Request 
to Invite a Guest Speaker, Lecturer, Performer, or 
Organized Group 

 
RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION: RESOLVED, That the Southern West Virginia 

Community and Technical College Board of 
Governors grant approval of SCP-1400, Guest 
Speakers, Lecturers, Performers, and Organized 
Groups, and SCP-1400.A., Request to Invite a 
Guest Speaker, Lecturer, Performer, or Organized 
Group, for rescission. 

 
STAFF MEMBER:  Debbie C. Dingess 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
SCP-1400, Guest Speakers, Lecturers, Performers, and Organized Groups, and SCP-1400.A., 
Request to Invite a Guest Speaker, Lecturer, Performer, or Organized Group, was reviewed for 
rescission by the Policies and Procedures Committee at its November 8, 2024 meeting with 
recommendation to forward the policy to the President’s Cabinet. This policy was recommended 
for rescission by the President’s Office as it is now obsolete and no longer required.  At its meeting 
on December 3, 2024, the President’s Cabinet granted approval for the advancement of SCP-
1400, Guest Speakers, Lecturers, Performers, and Organized Groups, and SCP-1400.A., 
Request to Invite a Guest Speaker, Lecturer, Performer, or Organized Group, to the Southern 
West Virginia Community and Technical College Board of Governors.  
 
Therefore, the staff recommends that the Board of Governors of Southern West Virginia 
Community and Technical College grant approval of SCP-1400, Guest Speakers, Lecturers, 
Performers, and Organized Groups, and SCP-1400.A., Request to Invite a Guest Speaker, 
Lecturer, Performer, or Organized Group, for rescission. 

160



SCP-1400, Guest Speakers, Lecturers, Performers, and Organized Groups Page 1 of 5  

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

SCP-1400 

 

RESCIND POLICY 

 
SUBJECT: Guest Speakers, Lecturers, Performers, and Organized Groups 

 

REFERENCE:  SCP-1215, Use of Institutional Facilities, SCP-1215.A, College Facility Use Agreement; SCP- 

1500, Philosophy, Vision, and Mission of Southern West Virginia Community and Technical 

College; Title 135, Procedural Rule, WV Council for Community and Technical College 

Education, Series 9, Academic Freedom, Professional Responsibility, Promotion and Tenure; 

Academic Association of University Professors 1940 Statement of Principles on Academic 

Freedom and Tenure 

 
ORIGINATION:   May 28, 2014 

 

EFFECTIVE: January 15, 2021 

 

REVIEWED: July 21, 2020 

 
 

SECTION 1. PURPOSE 

 

1.1 The mission of Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College (“the College”) is to provide 

accessible, affordable, quality education and training that promote success for those we serve. To support 

the mission, facilities of the College should be used, first and foremost, for educational activities. The 

purpose of this policy is to ensure that the classrooms and meeting rooms of the College are used in a manner 

that supports the College’s mission. To that end, officially recognized students, student organizations, 

faculty, and staff must follow the protocols contained in this policy before inviting guest speakers, lecturers, 

performers, or organized groups to present or perform in the College’s classrooms, meeting rooms, and lunch 

areas. 

 
1.2 The College supports the academic freedom of the faculty to engage in intellectual debate and expression of 

views without fear of censorship, retaliation, or sanctions both on and off campus. Academic freedom 

provides a faculty member the right to freely express their pedagogical philosophy and intellectual 

commitments. It is the intent of this policy to preserve the intellectual integrity of higher education. 

Administration, faculty, and staff must at all times encourage and promote intellectual and personal 

development of the students as these are the rights of citizenship. The College is encouraged to foster 

intelligent and rational discussion regardless of the topic. 

 
1.3 The education of students at the College encourages study, the pursuit of knowledge, and discussion of all 

points of view on various topics. To that end, students and student organizations have the right to freely and 

openly express opinions publicly and privately. Students have the right to support causes by orderly means 

which do not disrupt the regular and essential operations of the College. 

 
SECTION 2. SCOPE AND APPLICABILITY 

 

2.1 This policy applies to the College’s classrooms, meeting rooms, lunch areas, and student common areas, 

which are non-public forums. As non-public forums, the College shall limit the use of those rooms/areas to 

presentations and performances by Guest Speakers, Lecturers, Performers, and Organized Groups 

(collectively, “Guest Speakers”) who support the College’s educational mission. 

161



SCP-1400, Guest Speakers, Lecturers, Performers, and Organized Groups Page 2 of 5  

2.2 This policy does not apply to traditional public forums at the College, such as outdoor lawns on College 

property and College sidewalks adjoining public property. This policy also does not apply to the College’s 

designated public forums, such as the auditoriums and indoor common areas. The College does, however, 

reserve the right to ensure the orderly use of public forum areas by applying reasonable time and manner 

restrictions in the future. 

 

2.3 It is the emphatic intent of this policy that all persons authorized to approve or deny an otherwise appropriate 

request for a Guest Speaker shall observe strict neutrality as to the opinion or opinions that the Guest Speaker 

may express on the topic of the speech, lecture, presentation or performance. In other words, all approvals 

and denials of Guest Speaker requests shall be viewpoint-neutral, neither favoring nor disfavoring a particular 

point of view. 

 
SECTION 3. DEFINITIONS 

 

3.1 Academic Freedom – The College supports the Academic Association of University Professors 1940 

Statement of Principles on Academic Freedom and Tenure, ?institutions of higher education are conducted 

for the common good and not to further the interest of either the individual teacher or the institution as a 

whole. The common good depends upon the free search for truth and its free exposition.” 

 

3.2 Guest Speakers, Lecturers, Performers, and Organized Groups (collectively, “Guest Speakers”) – A person 

or group neither attending Southern, nor otherwise employed by the College, who is invited by an officially 

recognized student, student organization, a faculty member, or a staff member, to present or perform in a 

College classroom, meeting room, lunch area, or student common area. 

 

3.3 Indoor Common Areas – Indoor common areas include hallways, restrooms, and other indoor areas accessible 

to students in general. 

 

SECTION 4. POLICY 

 

4.1 Only an officially recognized student, student organization, faculty member, or staff member may invite a 

Guest Speaker to perform or present in a College classroom, meeting room, or lunch area. Prior to inviting 

a Guest Speaker to present or perform in a College classroom, meeting room, lunch area, or student common 

area an officially recognized student, student organization, faculty member, or staff member must submit a 

Request to Invite a Guest Speaker, Lecturer, Performer, or Organized Group (SCP-1400.A) to her/his 

immediate supervisor or appropriate organization advisor. 

 

4.2 An officially recognized student, student organization, faculty member, or staff member hosting a Guest 

Speaker in a College classroom, meeting room, lunch area, or student commons area may not open the Guest 

Speaker’s presentation or performance to individuals unaffiliated with the College without obtaining prior 

approval from the faculty or staff member’s immediate supervisor or the student organization’s advisor. 

 

4.3 Students, student organizations, faculty, and staff have a right to invite individuals to campus. Policies 

required by the College before a Guest Speaker is invited to appear on campus have been designed only to 

ensure that there is orderly scheduling of facilities and adequate preparation for the event. A request to invite 

a Guest Speaker to present or perform in a College classroom, meeting room, lunch area, or student commons 

area shall be made in writing to the faculty or staff member’s immediate supervisor or to the appropriate 

student organization’s advisor at least seven (7) days (excluding holidays and weekends) prior to the date of 

the proposed presentation or performance. Exceptions to the minimum notice requirements may be 

authorized by the immediate supervisor or appropriate organization advisor in appropriate cases. 

 
4.4 Any request to invite a Guest Speaker to present or perform in a College classroom, meeting room, or lunch 

162



SCP-1400, Guest Speakers, Lecturers, Performers, and Organized Groups Page 3 of 5  

area, or student commons area shall contain the following (as in Section 3 of SCP-1400.A): 

 

4.4.1 the name of the sponsoring individual or organization, 

 

4.4.2 the proposed date, time and location of the meeting, lecture, or performance, 

 

4.4.3 the expected size of the audience, 

 

4.4.4 the name and address of the proposed Guest Speaker, and 

 

4.4.5 the topic. 

 

4.5 Any external guest speaker, lecturer, performer, or organized group request is subject to the availability of 

the requested space for the meeting time and date requested. In the event that space is unavailable for the 

requested time and date of the meeting, or otherwise inappropriate for the request, or the request would 

impose substantial interference with normal activities of the institution, alternative available space may be 

offered by the institution, or the sponsoring organization is free to request a more suitable date and location. 

The individual or group inviting the external guest speaker, lecturer, performer, or organized group is 

responsible for confirming the availability of space with the appropriate Director of Campus Operations. The 

College will not withhold use of institutional facilities as a means of censorship. 

 
4.6 A request to invite a Guest Speaker to present or perform to whom payment would have to be from the 

College funds is subject to the availability of such funds. In order to receive payment for services, the Guest 

Speaker must be a registered vendor with the State of West Virginia. An electronic vendor application is 

available at https://www.wvoasis.gov/. 

 

4.7 A request for a Guest Speaker may be denied if the faculty or staff member’s immediate supervisor, or unit 

supervisor or the student organization’s advisor determines that the proposed presentation or performance 

will: 

 

4.7.1 Damage or destroy College property; or 

 

4.7.2 Disrupt, impair, or interfere with the College’s regularly scheduled classes; or 

 

4.7.3 Physically harm, coerce, intimidate, or invade the lawful rights of students and College personnel; 

or 

 

4.7.4 Incite violence; or 

 

4.7.5 Constitute criminal activity. 

 

4.7.6 Additionally, the faculty or staff member’s supervisor or the student organization’s advisor, may 

deny a request to invite a Guest Speaker if it is reasonably determined the presentation or 

performance presents a clear and imminent threat to the College’s orderly operations or is obscene 

(i.e., that which appeals to the obscene interest in sex; is patently offensive; and lacks serious literary, 

artistic, political, or scientific value). 

 

4.8 Any meeting, assembly, or activity to which a Guest Speaker may be invited is subject to all requirements, 

conditions, and approvals set forth in any policy or regulation of the Board of Governors and/or the institution 

concerning the use of campus property and facilities. 

 

4.9 The views expressed by a Guest Speaker are his or her own and do not necessarily represent the views of the 

163



SCP-1400, Guest Speakers, Lecturers, Performers, and Organized Groups Page 4 of 5  

College. Guest Speakers shall be held solely responsible for the views they express. The presence of a Guest 

Speaker on campus does not imply approval or endorsement by the College of the views expressed by the 

Guest Speaker, or by anyone else present at the event. 

 

SECTION 5. BACKGROUND OR EXCLUSIONS 

 

5.1 None. 

 

SECTION 6. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

6.1 None. 

 

SECTION 7. RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

7.1 Individual or Group Making a Request: 

 

7.1.1 Complete SCP-1400.A, Request to Invite a Guest Speaker, Lecturer, Performer, or Organized Group 

and provide other required documentation as needed. 

 

7.1.2 Submit one copy of SCP-1400.A and required documentation to the immediate supervisor (if the 

requestor is faculty or staff) or to the student organization’s advisor. 

 

7.1.3 Submit requests directly to the immediate supervisor, if the requestor is a faculty or staff member. 

 

7.1.4 Submit requests directly to the appropriate campus Student Government Association Advisor, if the 

requestor is the Student Government Association President. 

 

7.1.5 Request a conference at any step to discuss recommendations, if desired. 

 

7.1.6 A recommendation for denial at any step does not preclude an individual’s or group’s opportunity 

to be approved at the remaining phases. See, Section 7.4 below. 

 

7.2 The Immediate Supervisor or Student Government Association Advisor Will: 

 

7.2.1 Accept and review requests and appropriate documentation to determine that the required materials 

are included. 

 

7.2.2 Approve or deny the request and notify in writing the individual or group making a request within 

two (2) working days of the decision. 

 

7.2.3 Forward requests and appropriate documentation to the appropriate unit supervisor or organizational 

advisor for review and/or approval or denial. 

 

7.2.4 Cabinet-level positions will submit requests directly to the President or President’s authorized 

designee for review and/or approval or denial. 

 

7.3 The appropriate Unit Supervisor or Organization Advisor Will: 

 

7.3.1 Accept and review requests and appropriate documentation to determine that the required materials 

are included. 

 

7.3.2 Approve or deny the request and notify in writing the individual or group making a request within 

164



SCP-1400, Guest Speakers, Lecturers, Performers, and Organized Groups Page 5 of 5  

two (2) working days of the final decision. 

 

7.3.3 Forward a copy of requests and appropriate documentation to the President’s Office for maintaining 

a file with the names of individuals or groups that have been approved or denied as a Guest Speaker. 

 

7.4 The Appeal Process: 

 

7.4.1 In the event of a recommendation of denial, the individual or group making the request may appeal 

the final decision to the President. 

 

7.4.2 The President shall review the request, documentation, and reason(s) for denial and render a written 

decision for approval or denial within two (2) working days of receiving the request for appeal. 

 

7.5 The President of Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College or the President’s authorized 

designee is responsible for the implementation of this policy. 

 

SECTION 8. CANCELLATION 

 

8.1 None. 

 

SECTION 9. REVIEW STATEMENT 

 

9.1  This policy shall be reviewed on a regular basis with a time frame for review to be determined by the 

President or the President’s designee. Upon such review, the President or President’s designee may 

recommend to the Board that the policy be amended or repealed. 

 

SECTION 10. SIGNATURES 
 

 

 

Board of Governors Chair Date 
 

 

 

President Date 

 

Attachments: SCP-1400.A, Request to Invite a Guest Speaker, Lecturer, Performer, or Organized Group 

 

Distribution: Board of Governors (12 members) 

www.southernwv.edu 

 

Revision Notes: May 28, 2014 – Originated 

 
June 17, 2014 – Initial Release 

 
July 21, 2020 – Revisions reflect changes in the procedural and approval process, changes in 

the notification and documentation requirements, inclusion of the definition of academic 

freedom, inclusion of the West Virginia Council for Community and Technical College 

Education, Legislative Rule, Series 9, regarding academic freedom, and the Academic 

Association of University Professors 1940 Statement of Principles on Academic Freedom and 

Tenure in the policy’s reference section. 

165



SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

SCP-1400.A 

RESCIND POLICY 

 

  Request to Invite a Guest Speaker, Lecturer, Performer, or Organized Group  

 
Potential Guest Speakers (as defined in SCP-1400) are not to be contacted until official approval has been received. Any Guest 

Speaker request must be made to the immediate supervisor or appropriate organization advisor seven (7) days prior to the 

date of the proposed speaking engagement, performance, or lecture. Exceptions to the minimum notice requirements may be 

authorized by the immediate supervisor or appropriate organization advisor in appropriate cases. Upon completion of this form, 

please submit it to the appropriate supervisor or organization advisor. 

 

Section 1. General Information (To be completed by the individual/group making the request.) 

Name of Sponsoring Individual or Organization, if any:  

Name of Person Completing this Form:  

Your Contact Information (Phone Number and E-mail):  

 

Section 2. Guest Speaker Information 

Full Name of Guest Speaker:  

Mailing Address:  

Telephone Number:  

E-mail Address:  

Guest Speaker’s Corporate Affiliation, if any:  

 

Section 3. Event Information 

Proposed Date(s) of Event/Class/Meeting:  

Proposed Time(s) of Event/Class/Meeting:  

Proposed Location of Event/Class/Meeting:  

Expected Attendance for Event/Class/Meeting:  

Title/Topic/Performance being Presented:  

 

Section 4. Signature and Date 

 
 

Section 5. Signature of Immediate Supervisor or Organization Advisor, Appropriate Unit Supervisor, and Date 
G Approved G Denied Immediate Supervisor or Organization Advisor’s Signature: 
If denied, state the reason for denial (use additional sheet if necessary): 

Date: 

G Approved G Denied Unit Supervisor’s Signature: 
If denied, state the reason for denial (use additional sheet if necessary): 

Date: 

 
 

SCP-1400.A, Request to Invite a Guest Speaker, Lecturer, Performer, or Organized Group (Revised 07/2020)  

Date: Individual or Organization’s Representative Signature: 

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Copy to: 

Q Individual or Organization’s Representative 

Q Appropriate Director of Campus Operations 

Q President’s Office 

166



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

1 
 

  

1. Executive Summary 

Overview: 
This strategic plan outlines Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College’s 
commitment to providing accessible, affordable, and quality education that fosters 
success for our diverse student body. The plan is designed to respond to our region's 
evolving educational and workforce needs, ensuring that our students are well-prepared to 
thrive in both local and global economies. 

Key Goals: 

1. Provide Affordable and Accessible Education: Deliver education, service, and 
training opportunities for students of all backgrounds, abilities, and goals. 

2. Respond to Workforce and Economic Needs: Offer relevant and high-quality 
courses and programs that address the changing needs of local and regional 
employers and industries. 

3. Build Collaborative Relationships: Enhance the college’s visibility, reputation, and 
impact by fostering strong partnerships with community partners, schools, alumni, 
and other stakeholders. 

4. Promote Innovation and Excellence in Teaching: Use technology, data, and best 
practices to improve student outcomes and satisfaction. 

5. Strengthen Financial Stability: Ensure long-term fiscal health to continue 
providing affordable and accessible education, service, and training opportunities. 

Mission Statement: 
Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College provides accessible, affordable, 
quality education and training that promote success for those we serve. 

Vision Statement: 
Southern aspires to establish itself as a model of leadership, academic excellence, 
collaboration, and occupational training, equipping its students with the tools necessary to 
compete and prosper in the regional and global economies of the twenty-first century. 

2. Institutional Background 

History of Southern: 
Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College (Southern) is a public 

167



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

2 
 

community college with its main campus in Logan, West Virginia. The college is part of the 
West Virginia Community and Technical College System. 

In 1960, Southern was founded as the Logan and Williamson branches of Marshall 
Colleges and renamed as branches of Marshall University when Marshall achieved 
university status in 1961. Southern was given community college jurisdiction over Logan 
and Mingo counties. Initially, both campuses were housed in buildings that had become 
vacant by the respective Boards of Education during the desegregation of public education. 
Known as “the branch college,” both campuses sported basketball teams. 

A significant restructuring of higher education in West Virginia occurred in 1969 with the 
creation of the Board of Regents. The two branches were merged and became a stand-
alone community college in 1970. At that time, the name was changed to the Logan-
Williamson Community College. The name was again changed from Logan-Williamson 
Community College to Southern West Virginia Community College in 1971.  An institutional 
name change occurred in 1995 when the college was renamed Southern West Virginia 
Community and Technical College. In 1995, the Institution’s name changed from Southern 
West Virginia Community College to Southern West Virginia Community and Technical 
College. (1995) During this time, the college’s jurisdiction was expanded to include Boone 
and Wyoming County. 

Southern West Virginia Community College (Southern) was established as an 
independently accredited, comprehensive community college on July 1, 1971, by 
consolidating two existing branches of Marshall University. These branches, located in 
Logan and Mingo Counties, had operated under Marshall’s direction since 1960 and 
provided the first two years of liberal arts and teacher education and career programs in 
secretarial science and radiologic technology. In 1971, these two locations became 
Southern's first two campuses when it became an independently accredited institution of 
higher education. It was also in 1971 that Southern’s first building was completed in 
Williamson.  

Since 1971, the College has continued to expand its academic, workforce development, 
and community service offerings. In 1976, the West Virginia Board of Regents established 
formal service areas for each state’s public colleges and universities. Southern was 
assigned an approximately 1,900 square miles area, including Boone, Logan, Mingo, and 
Wyoming counties. In 1981, the College’s service area was expanded through an interstate 
agreement with Kentucky, which allowed students from Martin and Pike counties to attend 
Southern at the in-state tuition rate.  

168



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

3 
 

In 1995, with a renewed emphasis on workforce development and technical training, the 
state legislature changed the names of all community colleges in the state to emphasize 
their technical components. Southern’s name became Southern West Virginia Community 
and Technical College. In addition to the name change, three counties were added to 
Southern’s service district: Lincoln, McDowell, and Raleigh. McDowell and Raleigh were 
identified as “shared counties” responsible for providing educational opportunities shared 
with two other community colleges. Currently, the college serves Boone, Lincoln, Logan, 
McDowell, Mingo, and Wyoming counties.  

Along with increasing enrollment, expansion of the geographic area served, and growth in 
the number and types of programs offered, the College’s physical facilities have also grown 
through the years. Beginning with the original building on the Williamson Campus in 1971, 
new facilities have been constructed throughout the College’s district. The first Logan 
Campus building was built in 1979, and a new addition was added in 1987. In Wyoming 
County, a new location was selected near Twin Falls State Park, and a building was 
constructed there in 1989. In 1996, the Boone Campus relocated from a renovated facility 
in Madison to a new building adjacent to the Boone County Career and Technical Center.  

A second building was added to the Logan Campus in October 1998, and in 1999, a new 
library wing was added to the Williamson Campus. In the fall of 2007, a first-of-its-kind 
facility in West Virginia was built, physically connected to the Lincoln County 
Comprehensive High School. This site was opened to serve the Lincoln County area better. 
The College welcomed students into a new 55,000-square-foot, state-of-the-art Allied 
Health and Nursing facility on the Logan Campus in January 2008. In April 2013, Southern 
proudly opened the Applied Technology Center on the Williamson Campus, greatly 
enhancing the workforce and career training opportunities in Mingo County and 
surrounding communities. Subsequently, the College acquired the adjacent National 
Guard Armory building and property in Williamson. The building has been renovated to 
accommodate new energy technology programs. The facilities and locations throughout 
the service district allow Southern to continue to provide comprehensive education and 
training to meet the needs of current and future credit and non-credit students.  

Through the years, Southern has developed educational agreements with several public 
and private colleges and universities. These agreements were established to provide local 
access and additional opportunities for those who have completed the associate degree. 
This local access to baccalaureate and master’s degree programs utilizes a variety of 
delivery modes, including on-campus, traditional, and online instruction. These 
agreements with higher education institutions throughout the state and nation are 
continuously updated, and new ones are initiated as needed.  

169



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

4 
 

Southern continues to provide the highest-quality educational programs and training to 
serve the residents of its service district. The College strives to meet its mission of 
providing accessible, affordable, quality education and training that promotes success for 
those we serve. 

Current Status and Achievements: 

• Southern has achieved six consecutive semesters of increased enrollment. 

• Student retention rates have increased by 7.5% over the past three years. 

• In Spring 2024, extensive upgrades to the electronics in the Savas-Kostas Theater 
were completed.  These included upgraded sound, lighting, projection, and video 
capabilities.  A large 220-inch retractable screen was also installed to enhance 
presentations and to enable the Theater to be a fully functional classroom or 
meeting facility. 

• Fifty-eight percent of Southern graduates leave the institution with no student loan 
debt. 

• Southern has $12,714,524 in reserves.  

• The College was awarded $1,275,000.00 in Earmarked Funds as Part of the 
community Facility Grant Program from the United States Department of Agriculture  

• The College was awarded $800,000.00 from the US Department of Education in 
Earmarked funds as part of the Innovative Approaches to Literacy, Full-Service 
Community Schools, and Promise Neighborhood Program. These funds will help 
with the growth of the ECA program. 

• In July 2024, a new CRM, Element 451, was implemented to improve the Admissions 
Application process and communication with potential students.  Element 451 
features and integrates BOT and AI into the system, allowing for engaging 
interactions with potential students. 

• Southern is currently working with the State of West Virginia and the WV Higher 
Education Policy Commission to replace the heating and cooling units in Building A 
on the Logan Campus. This includes a Cooling Tower, 41 Water Source heat pumps, 
21 individual wall units, and 6 roof-top units. The Governor’s Office has designated 
$2,200,000 for this project. 

• Southern was recognized in the Great Colleges to Work For program in 2021 and 
2022.  In 2021, Southern was recognized in three categories: Mission & Pride; 
Confidence in Senior Leadership; and Diversity, Inclusion & Belonging.  In 2022, 

170



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

5 
 

Southern for the first time received Honor Roll status and was recognized in seven 
categories: Job Satisfaction & Support; Mission & Pride; Supervisor/Department 
Chair Effectiveness; Confidence in Senior Leadership; Shared Governance; Faculty 
Experience; and Diversity, Inclusion & Belonging.  Honor Roll status is given to the 
top four institutions that were cited most often in each size category. 

• The foundation has exceeded its goal for the Fifty Years and Beyond campaign of 
$1.5 M. 

• The College has completed its federal earmark requirements for $800,000.  ECA 
funding is available for the 2024/2025 term. 

• Southern is closing and executing final agreements for the federal earmark of $1.7 
M. on September 11, 2024 

• The Foundation secured a third federal earmark for 2026 to complete the seating 
and lift system for the Savas Kostas Theater in the amount of $300,000 

• The Cory Maynard Memorial Scholarship is nearly fully funded at over $40,000.00 of 
the $50,000 goal. 

• A new Spirit of Logan Scholarship has been established, and the College received 
$26,000 in cash and another $15,000 in pledges.  The goal for this fund is $50,000. 

• Allied Health and Nursing 2024 Licensure Passage Rates: 

o Paramedic Science – 75% 

o Medical Laboratory Technology – 86% 

o Nursing 

▪ Traditional – 88% 

▪ Accelerated – 100% 

▪ Aggregate – 91% 

o Radiologic Technology – 93% 

o Respiratory Care – 77% 

o Salon Management Degree – 87% 

o Surgical Technology – 100% 

o West Virginia Cosmetology License – 82% 

171



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

6 
 

Core Values: 
We will accomplish our mission by: 

1. Achieving excellence in education and service. 

2. Exhibiting integrity in all that we do. 

3. Collaborating and communicating actively with others. 

4. Being committed in word and deed. 

5. Imparting passion and compassion to our every task. 

6. Leading by encouragement and support of lifelong learning. 

7. Embracing change through bold actions. 

8. Being creative and innovative at all levels. 

9. Initiating opportunities for the community. 

10. Celebrating success. 

3. Strategic Planning Process 

Planning Process: 

The planning process for Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College's new 
Strategic Plan began in March of 2023 and concludes in December of 2024.  The process 
began with a two-day retreat at Hawks Nest State Park on March 6, 2023. During the 
retreat, the Cabinet members participated in discussions about the future direction of the 
College and agreed to serve as the Steering Committee for the Strategic Planning process. 
This marked the formal initiation of the development of the Strategic Plan, setting a 
foundation for active involvement across all levels of leadership. 

Following the retreat, on March 6, 2023, the Cabinet reviewed strategic plans from peer 
institutions, including Blue Ridge, Harford, Northern, Pierpont, and WVUP, to gather 
insights and best practices. A week later, on March 20, 2023, the Cabinet held a detailed 
SWOT Analysis discussion, identifying key strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and 
threats facing the College. 

From March 24-29, 2023, members of the Cabinet attended the Higher Learning 
Commission (HLC) Conference in Chicago, where workshops on Strategic Planning 
provided valuable guidance. These workshops contributed to further refining the College's 
strategic approach. 

172



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

7 
 

On April 27, 2023, emails were sent to both students and community members, inviting 
them to participate in the planning process. The College requested feedback on the SWOT 
analysis, the mission statement, and goals for the new Strategic Plan. This outreach 
ensured that a wide range of perspectives would be considered in formulating the Strategic 
Plan. 

Throughout 2023 and early 2024, the Cabinet, various committees, and employees at all 
levels of the College contributed to refining the mission statement, goals, and objectives. A 
webpage was added to the College’s website so that anyone could review the goals and 
objectives and submit potential strategies to help the College achieve those goals and 
objectives. 

By early 2024, workshops were conducted with faculty and staff to develop strategies for 
achieving the goals and objectives laid out in the Strategic Plan. Feedback was 
continuously gathered from employees, with the Steering Committee Chair leading several 
updates and discussions, including during Faculty Convocation and other staff meetings.  
Over 240 strategies were submitted by employees, students, and community members. 

The strategic planning process continued into 2024, with ongoing discussions to refine 
strategies. Cabinet members met on May 28, 2024, to assign goals to each unit and 
develop strategies aligning with the institution's goals and objectives. During the August 6, 
2024, meeting, Cabinet reviewed the outline of the Strategic Plan narrative and discussed 
needed items to complete the rough draft. On September 3, 2024, the Cabinet addressed 
the remaining items necessary to finalize the draft. A rough draft was delivered to the 
Strategic Planning Committee during the September 2024 Governance Day meeting for 
final revisions, after which the final rough draft will be sent to the Cabinet in November, and 
the final draft to the Cabinet and the Board of Governors in December 2024 for final 
approval. 

4. Environmental Scan 

Internal and External Analysis (SWOT): 

Strengths:  
Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College boasts a strong accreditation 
and financial health foundation, positioning it as a leading higher education provider in 
southwestern West Virginia. The College benefits from confidence in its senior leadership 
and fosters positive working relationships across organizational units, enhancing its 
overall effectiveness. 

173



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

8 
 

The institution’s commitment to continuous improvement is reflected in its flexible class 
delivery options, advanced technology adoption, and robust assessment culture. Southern 
is recognized for its affordability, making higher education accessible to a broad spectrum 
of students, many of whom receive financial aid. The College’s dedication to student 
success is evident through the caring support provided by faculty, staff, administration, 
and the foundation. 

Southern’s strategic initiatives, including a comprehensive enrollment plan and master 
facilities plan, contribute to its sustainability and growth. The College also excels in 
maintaining small class sizes, promoting a favorable student-teacher ratio that enhances 
the learning experience. 

Moreover, the College’s strong community ties, transferable class agreements, and new 
workforce programs, particularly those appealing to male students, further demonstrate 
its responsiveness to regional needs. Finally, increased participation in institutional 
governance underscores Southern’s inclusive approach to decision-making and 
leadership. 

Weaknesses:  
While Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College has many strengths, 
several areas require attention to ensure sustained success. The College has experienced 
a lack of long-term strategic planning. This is evident without comprehensive strategic 
plans across key areas, including academics, technology, student services, finance, 
business services, human resources, and advertising/marketing. These gaps have hindered 
the College's ability to fully align its operations with its strategic goals. 

Additionally, the College faces infrastructure challenges, particularly with aging buildings 
that may not fully support the modern educational environment. The lack of a unified and 
effective retention plan, coupled with low student engagement, further exacerbates the 
challenge of maintaining and improving enrollment figures. 

Moreover, there is a need for a deeper understanding of the student experience at 
Southern, which is critical for tailoring services and improving student satisfaction. The 
absence of KPI data dashboards limits the College's ability to track progress effectively and 
make informed decisions based on real-time data. 

Finally, the lack of uniformity in online class navigation creates an inconsistent learning 
experience for students, which could impact their academic success and satisfaction. 
Addressing these weaknesses is crucial for Southern as it seeks to strengthen its 
institutional effectiveness and student outcomes. 

Opportunities:  
Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College is positioned to capitalize on 

174



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

9 
 

several key opportunities that can drive future growth and success. A significant 
percentage of the local population does not yet hold a higher education credential, 
presenting an untapped market for enrollment. By strengthening partnerships with feeder 
high schools and Career and Technical Education (CTE) programs, the College can create 
seamless pathways for students to transition into postsecondary education. 

Southern's strong reputation in nursing and allied health programs offers an opportunity to 
expand these high-demand areas further, particularly as healthcare continues to be a 
growing industry in the region. State funding for dual credit provides a mechanism to 
increase early college access, positioning Southern as a preferred option for high school 
students seeking a head start on their college education. 

Performance-based funding models may also present new financial opportunities for the 
College to secure additional funding by improving student outcomes. With the introduction 
of the new mySouthern App and a new advising system designed to increase student and 
faculty interactions, the College is leveraging technology to improve student engagement 
and success. 

Additionally, Southern has the potential to enhance its influence and reach by building 
strategic partnerships with local employers, four-year institutions, and civic and political 
leaders. These partnerships can lead to stronger workforce development programs and 
expanded opportunities for students to transfer or find employment post-graduation. 
Participation in the Higher Learning Commission (HLC) academies and the Southern 
Mountains Consortium further underscores Southern's commitment to continuous 
improvement and collaboration. 

New professional development platforms and an entrepreneurial spirit within the College 
provide opportunities to invest in faculty and staff, enhancing their skills and encouraging 
innovation across all institution levels. 

By pursuing these opportunities, Southern can increase enrollment and strengthen its 
programs, improve student outcomes, and contribute to the economic and social well-
being of the region. 

Threats:  
Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College faces several significant external 
and internal challenges that may affect its future growth and sustainability. A high 
percentage of the local population lacks higher education, and there is a declining college-
going rate, both limiting the potential student pool. Additionally, the College serves a 
relatively homogenous population and has seen limited enrollment growth in recent years. 
Male students also have low participation, which reflects broader demographic challenges. 

175



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

10 
 

Southern experiences a lack of support from certain feeder high schools, which can impact 
student recruitment. Furthermore, the performance-based funding model introduces 
financial uncertainty, particularly given the declining perception of the value of higher 
education in society. The increasing encroachment of four-year institutions, often called 
“mission creep,” also presents a competitive threat to the College's student base. 

Internal challenges include an urgent “need it now” mentality among students, along with 
concerns over their mental health and well-being. The teaching profession is declining 
while employees seek more flexible working environments. These challenges call for 
adaptive strategies to address student and employee needs while maintaining the 
College's mission. 

5. Strategic Goals, Objectives, and Strategies 

A goal is a broad, long-term outcome that Southern seeks to achieve.  It represents the 
overarching ambition or purpose aligned with the College’s mission, vision, and core values 
to help guide the overall direction of the institution over a multi-year period.   

An objective is a specific, measurable target that supports achieving the goal.  Objectives 
break down goals into more actionable outcomes that can be measured and assessed over 
a shorter timeframe.  Each goal will have multiple objectives. 

Strategies are the detailed, concrete actions needed to fulfill each objective.   

Goal 1: Provide affordable and accessible education, service, and training 
opportunities for students of all backgrounds, abilities, and goals. 

• Objective 1A: Increase the enrollment, retention, and completion rates of students 
from underrepresented and underserved groups, such as low-income, first-
generation, minority, veteran, and adult learners. 

• Objective 1B: Expand the availability and quality of online, hybrid, and flexible 
learning options that cater to the diverse needs and preferences of students, 
especially those who face barriers such as distance, time, or family obligations. 

• Objective 1C: Integrate community service and civic engagement into the college’s 
culture and curriculum to foster social responsibility and global citizenship among 
students and employees. 

• Objective 1D:  Develop partnerships with community organizations, agencies, and 
businesses that can offer service placements, projects, and resources for students, 
as well as collaborate with the college on curriculum development, program 
evaluation, and advocacy. 

176



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

11 
 

• Objective 1E:  Foster a culture of diversity, equity, inclusion, and belonging on 
campus and in the classroom by promoting respect, understanding, and 
appreciation of different perspectives, backgrounds, and experiences, as well as 
providing opportunities for intercultural and global learning. 

• Objective 1F:  Recognize and reward the service contributions and achievements of 
students, faculty, and staff by offering certificates, awards, scholarships, and other 
forms of recognition, as well as showcasing their stories and impacts on the college 
and community. 

Goal 2: Respond to the changing workforce and economic needs of the local and 
regional employers and industries by offering relevant and high-quality courses and 
programs. 

• Objective 2A: Conduct regular and systematic environmental scanning, labor 
market analysis, and employer feedback to identify current and emerging trends, 
skills, and demands in various sectors and occupations. 

• Objective 2B: Develop, revise, and align curricula, learning outcomes, and 
assessments with the industry standards, best practices, and accreditation 
requirements, as well as the college’s mission, vision, and values. 

• Objective 2C:  Offer a range of courses and programs that are responsive to the 
diverse needs and interests of students, such as transfer, career and technical, 
continuing education, customized training, and apprenticeship programs. 

• Objective 2D:  Enhance the quality and effectiveness of instruction by providing 
faculty with professional development, resources, and support, as well as 
encouraging innovation, collaboration, and engagement in teaching and learning. 

• Objective 2E: Establish and maintain partnerships with employers, industry 
associations, and other stakeholders to provide students with opportunities for 
work-based learning, internships, mentorships, and employment. 

Goal 3: Build strong and collaborative relationships with community partners, 
schools, alumni, and other stakeholders to enhance the college’s visibility, 
reputation, and impact. 

• Objective 3A: Increase the awareness and recognition of the college’s programs, 
services, and achievements among the public, media, policymakers, and potential 
students by developing and implementing effective marketing, communication, and 
outreach strategies. 

177



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

12 
 

• Objective 3B: Strengthen the alignment and articulation of the college’s courses 
and programs with the secondary and postsecondary education systems, as well as 
the state and national standards and expectations, by creating and maintaining 
transfer agreements, dual enrollment programs, early college academies, and 
academic pathways. 

• Objective 3C:  Engage and support the college’s alumni and donors by creating and 
maintaining an alumni network, database, and communications, as well as 
organizing events, activities, and fundraising campaigns to celebrate their success 
and solicit their feedback and contributions. 

• Objective 3D:  Foster a culture of collaboration and engagement among the 
college’s internal and external stakeholders by establishing and participating in 
advisory boards, committees, councils, and networks, as well as soliciting and 
responding to their input and feedback on the college’s planning and improvement. 

Goal 4: Promote innovation and excellence in teaching and learning by using 
technology, data, and best practices to improve student outcomes and satisfaction. 

• Objective 4A:  Adopt and implement effective and innovative instructional 
technologies and methods that can enhance student engagement, interaction, and 
learning, such as online platforms, multimedia tools, simulations, games, and 
flipped classrooms. 

• Objective 4B:  Provide training, resources, and support for faculty and staff 
interested in or involved in using technology and innovation in teaching and 
learning, such as workshops, webinars, manuals, and grants, as well as creating a 
recognition and reward system for their efforts and achievements. 

• Objective 4C:  Create and maintain a technology and innovation center or office 
that can coordinate, facilitate, and promote the college’s technology-related 
initiatives, events, and opportunities, as well as serve as a liaison and resource for 
students, faculty, staff, and external partners. 

• Objective 4D:  Evaluate and improve the quality and impact of the college’s 
technology and innovation activities by collecting and analyzing data on student 
learning, satisfaction, and retention, as well as faculty and staff satisfaction and 
performance, and using the results to inform decision-making and improvement. 

• Objective 4E:  Showcase and celebrate the college’s technology and innovation 
achievements and stories by creating and maintaining a website, blog, and social 

178



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

13 
 

media platforms, as well as organizing events, activities, and awards to highlight the 
college’s technology contributions and impacts. 

Goal 5:  Strengthen financial stability to provide affordable and accessible education, 
service, and training opportunities for students of all backgrounds, abilities, and 
goals. 

• Objective 5A:  Develop and implement a comprehensive financial plan that ensures 
long-term fiscal health and sustainability. 

• Objective 5B:  Seek to create a competitive environment by aligning the 
organization's goals and partnerships to highlight the mission of the College. 

• Objective 5C:  Optimize operational efficiency through cost-saving measures and 
process improvements. 

• Objective 5D:  Advocate for increased state and federal funding for higher 
education. 

• Objective 5E:  Explore new revenue streams. 

 

Institutional Strategies by Unit 

Academic Affairs Strategies 

2025 Strategies 

1. Academic Affairs (Entire Unit) 
a) Use social media marketing for Program Advisory to build and improve 

programs. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 1D, 2B, 2C, 2E, 3A, & 4E) 
b) Develop tourism pathways for the Tourism Works Program. (Goal and 

Objective Mapping: 2B, 2C, & 3B) 
c) Develop Short-Term Certificate Programs through Micro-credentials for 

Industry-Recognized Credential Transfer Assurance Guides (ITAGs), Career-
Technical Assurance Guides (CTAGs), and Military Transfer Assurance Guides 
(MTAGs) for credit (ALL programs). (Goal and Objective Mapping: 1A, 2A, 2B, 2C, 
2E, & 3B) 

2. Accreditation and Assessment 
a) Implement on-campus pedagogy-based professional development on 

assessment. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 2B, 2D, 4B, & 4D) 

179



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

14 
 

b) Provide training on student learning outcomes and closing the loop. (Goal and 
Objective Mapping: 2B, & 2D) 

c) Communicate to stakeholders the results of course-level and program-level 
assessment data to make changes to improve student success. (Goal and 
Objective Mapping: 1D, 2D, 3A, 3D, & 4D) 

3. Allied Health and Nursing Programs 
a) Design and build micro-credentials and their associated digital badges 

which are already embedded in individual modules/chapters in AH and NU 
programs’ courses. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 2A, 2B, 2E, & 3B) 

b) Create an LPN to RN program bridge with various Career and Technical 
Schools in our region. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 1B, 2B, 2C, & 3B) 

c) Develop 3+1 and 2+2 RN to BSN programs. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 1B, 
2B, 2C, & 3B) 

4. Professional and Transfer Programs 
a) Implement an Associate in Applied Science Degree Program in Hospitality 

and Tourism Management on the Williamson Campus. (Goal and Objective 
Mapping: 1A, 1D, 2A, 2B, 2C, & 2E) 

b) Develop Culinary Micro-Credentialing Skill Set Pathways applicable to 
beginning Culinary through Executive Chef through innovation and 
Internships from the Hospitality and Tourism Program. (Goal and Objective 
Mapping: 1A, 2A, 2B, 2C, 2E, 3A, & 4E) 

c) Reinvent the Marketing Option of the Business Administration Program to 
meet the projected needs of the Marketing Manager in Tourism Career 
Options. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 1A, 2A, 2B, 2C, & 5E) 

d) Implement the Grow Your Own WV Pathway to Teaching (GYO). GYO is a 
collaborative relationship between the identified county “Grow Your Own” 
WV Pathway to Teaching (GYO WV) program, an Institution of Higher 
Education (IHE), and the West Virginia Department of Education (WVDE) to 
meet the increasing demand for K-12 teachers. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 
1A, 2A, 2B, 2C, 3B, & 5E) 

e) Align high school Dual Enrollment-specific courses to Tourism Pathways as 
the Higher Education Policy Commission requires.  (Goal and Objective 
Mapping: 1A,  2B, 2C, 2E, & 5E) 

f) Expand Early College Academy (ECA) Program choices in all participating 
county high schools, including Business and Technical Programs as new 
choices. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 1A, 2A, 2B, 2C, 2E, & 5E) 

5. Non-Traditional Programs 

180



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

15 
 

a) Expand the current Lineman Program to the next level of Substation 
infrastructure and transformer construction for certification in Substation 
Technicians. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 1A, 2A, 2B, 2C, & 5E) 

b) Implement Fiber Optics Installer Training Program. Installation, preparation, 
troubleshooting, and repairs of fiber optic cables and operating systems 
through optical networking. Color coding and cabling techniques would also 
be mastered. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 1A, 2A, 2B, 2C, & 5E) 

c) Link all Mining Courses to the Academic Mine Management Program to earn 
Micro-Credentialing Skill Set Badges at multiple levels (4-5) that may also 
morph into a full 30 Credit Hour Certificate in Mine Management and a 60 
Credit Hour Associate in Applied Science Mine Management Degree 
Program. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 2B &  2C) 

External Affairs Strategies 

2025 Strategies 

1. Partner with local media and marketing specialists to develop a scientific marketing 
approach. Utilizing captured market data based on individuals, interests, internet 
searches, purchasing, and other behaviors to market specific to their interests and 
needs.  (Goal and Objective Mapping: 3A) 

2. Develop and maintain relationships with the media, policymakers, and influencers 
to enhance the college's strengths. Send regular updates, press releases, 
invitations, and pitches that showcase the college’s newsworthy and relevant 
stories, events, and initiatives. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 3A) 

3. Develop an internal communication system that informs the college faculty and 
staff of upcoming events, milestones, and achievements across programs and 
campuses. This will allow for proper recognition, marketing, and advertising to be 
developed that highlights the college’s impact. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 3A) 

4. Create a communication plan for alumni outreach. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 3B) 
5. Engage the services of a company to do address and email updates on our student 

database. Use the updated list to target similarities within the group for specific 
marketing campaigns. i.e. year graduated, the program of study while at the college, 
current city or state of residence. (This data could steer the type of correspondence 
sent to engage a segment of students who now live close to one another to launch a 
local alumni chapter.) (Goal and Objective Mapping: 3B) 

6. Organize and participate in events, such as open houses, fairs, workshops, 
webinars, and conferences, that can attract and inform potential students and 
stakeholders about the college and its offerings. Provide them with valuable 

181



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

16 
 

information, resources, and incentives, such as brochures, flyers, giveaways, and 
scholarships. Create teams of participants that represent a wide variety of divisions 
across the college. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 3B) 

Facilities Strategies 

2025 Strategies 

1. Replace older lights with LED-type lighting, which produces up to 90% more 
efficiency than older lighting. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 5C) 

2. Have local utilities conduct energy audits of all buildings on all campuses. (Goal and 
Objective Mapping: 5C) 

3. Monitor monthly utility costs. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 5C) 

Finance Strategies 

2025 Strategies 

1. Increase the budget-training opportunities for all employees. (Goal and Objective 
Mapping: 5A) 

2. Develop a tuition plan. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 5A & 5B) 
3. Attend grant writing training and provide that training to other employees. (Goal and 

Objective Mapping: 5D) 

Human Resources Strategies 

2025 Strategies 

1.  Promote an employee culture of continuous learning and knowledge sharing 
through online learning platforms, lunch-and-learn sessions, and cross-functional 
projects. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 1E, 3D, & 4B) 

2. Facilitate knowledge transfer between outgoing and incoming leaders through job 
shadowing, cross-training, and documentation of critical processes. (Goal and 
Objective Mapping: 3D & 5C) 

3. Involve employees in decision-making processes, encourage innovation through 
idea-sharing platforms, and recognize and celebrate successes that reinforce 
desired behaviors. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 1F) 

Information Technology Strategies 

2025 Strategies 

182



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

17 
 

1. Create IT needs analysis for each unit. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 2A, 3D, 4A, 4B, 4D, 
4E, & 5C) 

2. Develop an Innovation Center – to support increased technology access and 
education for the college and community. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 1C, 1F, 2A, 2D, 
3C, 3D, 4A, 4B, 4C, 4D, 4E, 5C & 5E) 

3. Establish IR database and webpage. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 1F, 2A, 2D, 3C, 3D,  
4A, 4B, 4C, 4D, 4E, & 5C) 

4. Engage the Southern community (staff, faculty, students, alumni, and community 
leaders) in data collection through qualitative and quantitative surveys to help 
establish benchmarks for initiatives and objectives and enable a proactive 
approach to addressing needs. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 2A, 3C, 3D, 4A, 4B, 4C, 4D, 
4E, & 5C) 

Student Services Strategies 

2025 Strategies 

1. Develop and implement an Intramural program. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 1A, 1E, & 
3C) 

2. Create and facilitate a "Day of Service" program. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 1A, 1C, 
1E, 1F, & 3C) 

3. Hold an awards ceremony to recognize students' academic, leadership, or service 
achievements at the end of the academic year. (Goal and Objective Mapping: 1A & 1F) 

6. Implementation, Assessment, and Communication Plan 

Implementing Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College’s Strategic Plan 
will involve continuous monitoring, evaluation, and reporting to ensure progress toward 
achieving the institution’s goals and objectives. Each member of the College’s Cabinet has 
been assigned responsibility for specific strategic goals, with accountability for tracking 
progress, making adjustments, and reporting outcomes to the Strategic Planning 
Committee (SPC) and the College President. 

• Goal 1, focused on providing affordable and accessible education, will be jointly 
monitored by the Chief Student Services Officer and the Chief Facilities Officer. 

• Goal 2, addressing the changing workforce needs and academic programs, will be 
overseen by the Chief Academic Officer. 

• Goal 3, focused on building strong community partnerships, will be managed by the 
Chief External Affairs Officer. 

183



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

18 
 

• Goal 4, centered on promoting innovation and excellence in teaching and learning, 
will be the responsibility of the Chief Information Officer. 

• Goal 5, aimed at strengthening the College’s financial stability, will be jointly 
overseen by the Chief Finance Officer and the Chief Human Resources Officer. 

Each Cabinet Officer will be required to provide updates on the progress of their assigned 
goals. This reporting will occur at the College's four Governance Day meetings, with the 
SPC reviewing one or more specific goals at each session: 

• Goal 1 will be reviewed at the first Governance Day meeting of the Academic Year. 

• Goal 2 at the second. 

• Goal 3 at the third. 

• Goals 4 and 5 at the fourth Governance Day meeting. 

At the conclusion of each Governance Day meeting, the SPC Chairperson and the 
Recorder will provide the College community with an email update summarizing the key 
developments, discussions, and decisions made by the Strategic Planning Committee. This 
communication will ensure that the broader College community remains informed and 
engaged with the Strategic Plan’s progress. 

As part of the formal reporting process, by June 30th of each year, each Cabinet member 
will complete and submit an action plan form for each strategy. These action plans will 
provide a detailed report on the current year’s progress and outline specific plans for the 
upcoming year. This ensures that goals remain on track and that strategies are adapted as 
necessary to meet evolving challenges and opportunities. The completed action plan 
forms and a formal written report will be submitted to the SPC Chairperson and the College 
President. 

After submitting these reports, by September 30th of each year, the SPC Chairperson, in 
consultation with the College President and the Director of Communications, will issue a 
press release summarizing the College's progress in achieving its strategic goals. This will 
ensure that stakeholders, both internal and external, are kept informed of the institution’s 
forward momentum. 

This structured, ongoing evaluation process, coupled with annual action planning, regular 
updates, and transparent communication, is critical to keeping the Strategic Plan on 
course and ensures that Southern West Virginia Community and Technical College remains 
focused on its mission to serve students and the broader community effectively. 

184



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

19 
 

7. Appendix 

Action Plan Update Form Items 
(This form will be primarily digital, but a paper form will be available.) 
Date Completed 

• The date when this form is completed. 

Year 

• The academic or fiscal year the action plan is covering. 

Goal Number 

• Specify which strategic goal the action plan is addressing (e.g., Goal 1: Provide 
affordable and accessible education). 

Objective Number 

• Identify the specific objective within the strategic goal that this action plan targets. 

Strategy 

• The strategy being implemented to achieve the objective. 

Action Steps 

• A detailed list of the specific actions or tasks completed. 

Responsible Person(s) 

• Name(s) and titles of the individuals responsible for executing each action step. 

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Update 

• Update on the specific, measurable criteria that will be used to evaluate the 
success of the strategy (e.g., enrollment growth percentages, retention rates, 
community partnerships established). 

Status Update 

• Current status of each action step (e.g., "Not Started," "In Progress," "Completed"). 

Challenges/Barriers 

• Any potential or existing challenges that could impact the successful 
implementation of the strategy. 

185



Last Updated:  12/17/2024 

20 
 

Proposed Solutions 

• Planned actions or adjustments to overcome the challenges or barriers listed. 

Outcomes Achieved (End-of-Year Reporting) 

• A summary of outcomes, including any data or metrics, to assess the success of the 
strategy after it has been implemented. 

Future Plans/Adjustments 

• Recommendations for the upcoming year based on the results of the current year’s 
implementation, including any adjustments or new strategies. 

Submitted By 

• Person who submitted this action plan update. 

186



EFFECTIVE

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA
COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE

Organizational Chart

EFFECTIVE

SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA
COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE

Organizational Chart

OFFICE OF HUMAN RESOURCES

UPDATED
12/03/2024

187



SOUTHERN WEST VIRGINIA COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

INDEX                                                                                                     
 President……………………………………………………………………….…………….…. Page 1 
  President’s Cabinet 
   
 External Affairs………………………………………………………………………………….    Page 2 
  Communications 
  Development 

 
 Facilities …………………………………………………………………………………..……. Page 3 
 
 Human Resources……………………….....……………………………………………..…… Page 4 
   
 Finance ………….. …………………………………………………………………………….. Page 5 
  Controller 
  Budgets and Purchasing 
     
 Office of Information Technology ……..………………………………………………………. Page 6 
  Applications Programming/Development 
  Distance Education 
  Web Development 
  Institutional Research 
  Network Services 
  User Services 
  
 Student Services……………………………………………………….………………………. Page 7-8  

   Admissions……………………………………………………………………………… Page 7 
 Financial Assistance…………………………………………………………………… Page 7  
 Registrar………………………………………………………………………………… Page 7 
  Student Success………………………………………………………………………. Page 7 
 

  Academic Affairs/ALO………………………………………………………………….………... Page 8-11 
  Accreditation and Assessment………….….…………………….…….……….……… Page 8 
  Community Relations……………………………………………………………………. Page 8 
  Library Services………….….…………………….…….……………………….……… Page 8 
  Professional and Transfer Programs…………………………………….…….……… Page 9 
  Allied Health and Nursing …………….………………………………………………... Page 10 
  Non-Traditional Programs ……………………………………………………………… Page 11 
  Workforce Development …………………………………………………………………Page 11 
   
 
 
 
  
  

188



PRESIDENT

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO THE

PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 

GOVERNORS

Logan Campus

Jennifer Dove

CHIEF FINANCE 

OFFICER

Logan Campus

Velva Pennington

Legend : Direct Reporting Line ______

Coordinating Line  -  -  -  -  -  -

CHIEF ACADEMIC 

OFFICER

Logan Campus

Vacant

DD GG

CHIEF STUDENT 

SERVICES 

OFFICER 

Logan Campus

Darrell Taylor

BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Classified Staff Council

Faculty Senate

General Counsel

Student Government Associations

FFCC EE

CHIEF EXTERNAL 

AFFAIRS OFFICER

Logan Campus

R. Stacy Dingess

CHIEF FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

OFFICER

Logan Campus

Joe Linville

CHIEF HUMAN 

RESOURCES 

OFFICER

Logan Campus

Debbie C. Dingess

BB

CHIEF 

INFORMATION 

OFFICER

Logan Campus

Thomas Cook

AA

Page 1

ACCREDITATION LIAISON OFFICER/

SPECIAL PROJECTS MANAGEMENT

Logan Campus

Bill Alderman

189



AA

PRESIDENT

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

Legend : Direct Reporting Line_______                            

Coordinating Line  -  -  -  -  -  -

CHIEF EXTERNAL AFFAIRS OFFICER

 

Logan Campus

R. Stacy Dingess

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO THE CHIEF 

EXTERNAL AFFAIRS OFFICER/

OPERATIONS MANAGER

Logan Campus

Tammy Toppings

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNICATIONS

Logan Campus

Bill France

MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS 

COORDINATOR

Logan Campus

Melinda Taylor

DEVELOPMENT COORDINATOR

Logan Campus

Crystal Cook

GRANT WRITER

Logan Campus

Vacant (New)

PRODUCTION ASSISTANT

Williamson Campus

Christopher Lawson

Page 2

190



DIRECTOR OF SAFETY AND 

CAMPUS OPERATIONS

Wyoming/McDowell Campus

David Lord

CHIEF FACILITIES MANAGEMENT OFFICER

Logan Campus

Joe Linville

Legend : Direct Reporting Line ______

Coordinating Line  -  -  -  -  -  -

ASSISTANT 

DIRECTOR 

PHYSICAL PLANT

Williamson Campus

Kenny Bowens

CAMPUS SERVICE 

WORKER

Logan Campus

Charles “BJ” Meade

Thomas Gartin

Williamson Campus

Pamela Bowen

Ryan DeBoard

Shelley Woolum

TRADES 

SPECIALIST LEAD I

Logan Campus

Scott Pritchard

DIRECTOR OF FACILITIES

Logan Campus

R. Eric Brumfield

PRESIDENT

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

SNACK BAR CONTRACTORS

Logan

WilliamsonBB

TRADES

SPECIALIST I

Logan Campus

Derek Erwin

Paul Lowe

Williamson Campus

Mark Bowens

FOR CAMPUS 

OPERATIONS 

MATTERS ONLY

Wyoming Campus

Patty Brooks

Page 3

191



PRESIDENT

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

CHIEF HUMAN RESOURCES 

OFFICER 

Logan Campus

Debbie C. Dingess

Legend : Direct Reporting Line_______                            

Coordinating Line  -  -  -  -  -  -

CC

 MANAGER HUMAN RESOURCES

Logan Campus

Susan Ross

 HUMAN RESOURCES ASSISTANT

(Part-time)

Logan Campus

Henrietta McClellan

HUMAN RESOURCES 

REPRESENTATIVE

Logan Campus

 MaShawnna Carter

MANAGER PAYROLL, SR.

Logan Campus

Carole Jobe

Page 4

192



CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

Logan Campus

 Velva Pennington

Legend : Direct Reporting Line ______

Coordinating Line  -  -  -  -  -  -

DIRECTOR OF BUDGETS AND 

PURCHASING

Logan Campus

Jill Collins

CONTROLLER

Logan Campus

Evan Riggins

BURSAR

Williamson Campus

J. Christopher Gray

ACCOUNTANT

Logan Campus

Cheryl Elliott-Hicks

ACCOUNTANT

Logan Campus

Judy Slazo

ACCOUNTING 

ASSISTANT I

Logan Campus

Sonda McMillen

DD

PRESIDENT

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

ASSISTANT 

ACCOUNTANT

Williamson 

Campus

Ruby Runyon

Page 5

ACCOUNTING 

ASSISTANT I

Williamson Campus

Crystal Browning

GRANTS 

COORDINATOR

Logan Campus

Judith Runyon

FOR REVENUE 

MATTERS ONLY

Lincoln Site

Angela Bell

Logan and 

Williamson Campus

Library Department

FOR 

SWITCHBOARD 

MATTERS ONLY

Lincoln Site

Angela Bell

Wyoming Campus

Patty Brooks

193



CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER

Logan Campus

Thomas Cook

DIRECTOR OF USER SERVICES

 

Logan Campus

Curtis Campbell

Legend : Direct Reporting Line ______

Coordinating Line  -  -  -  -  -  -

DIRECTOR OF NETWORK SERVICES

Logan Campus

Joseph Justice

SYSTEMS ADMINISTRATOR

Logan Campus

Andrew Portzer

INFORMATION 

SYSTEMS  

TECHNICIAN

Logan Campus

Lee Stroud

J. Brandon Vance

Vicki Workman

Wyoming Campus

Michael Hunter

Williamson Campus

Vacant

PRESIDENT

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

DIRECTOR OF DISTANCE 

EDUCATION

Williamson Campus

Tim Owens

EE

DIRECTOR OF INSTITUTIONAL 

RESEARCH

Logan Campus

Sarah Brown

WEB DEVELOPER

Logan Campus

Christopher Thompson

APPLICATIONS PROGRAMMER/

DEVELOPER LEAD

Logan Campus

Brian Chaney

APPLICATIONS PROGRAMMER

Logan Campus

Mark Justice

Page 6

194



DIRECTOR OF STUDENT 

SUCCESS

Logan Campus

Dianna Toler

PRESIDENT

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

Legend : Direct Reporting Line ______

Coordinating Line  -  -  -  -  -  -

 CHIEF STUDENT SERVICES OFFICER

Logan Campus

Darrell Taylor

FF

STUDENT SUCCESS 

ADVISOR

Boone Campus

Elijah Hooker

Logan Campus

Brian Carter

Michele Moore

(TANF Grant)

 Cassandra Vance

Meghan Shell

(ASCEND Grant)

Williamson Campus

Elizabeth Evans

Cheryl Thacker

(TANF Grant)

Roger Williamson

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO THE CHIEF 

STUDENT SERVICES OFFICER/

OPERATIONS MANAGER

Logan Campus

Shelly Parker

DIRECTOR OF ADMISSIONS

Logan Campus

Tim Ooten

DIRECTOR OF FINANCIAL 

ASSISTANCE

Logan Campus

Mary Trent

FINANCIAL AID 

COUNSELOR

Logan Campus

Emily Mills

Shannon Williams

Williamson Campus

Kelly Jacobs

REGISTRAR

Logan Campus

Teri Wells

STUDENT SUCCESS 

CENTER 

COORDINATOR

Logan Campus

Hattie Newsome

TRANSFER 

COORDINATOR

Logan Campus 

Angela Dotson

STUDENT 

RECORDS 

ASSISTANT

Williamson Campus

Vacant

PROGRAM 

ASSISTANT I

Logan Campus 

Brittany Dove

FOR ADMISSIONS 

AND/OR STUDENT 

RECORDS 

MATTERS ONLY

Lincoln Site

Angela Bell

RECRUITMENT AND

OUTREACH 

SPECIALIST

Logan Campus

Mike Collins

FOR STUDENT 

SUCCESS MATTERS 

ONLY

Lincoln Site

Angela Bell

FINANCIAL AID 

ASSISTANT

(Part-time)

Logan Campus 

Roberta Carter

PROGRAM 

ASSISTANT I

Wyoming Campus

Patty Brooks

FOR ADMISSIONS 

MATTERS ONLY

Wyoming Campus

Patty Brooks   STUDENT 

COMMUNICATIONS 

SPECIALIST

Williamson Campus

Shelly Stewart

STUDENT GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATIONS

Page 7

195



CHIEF ACADEMIC OFFICER

Logan Campus

Vacant

PRESIDENT

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

Legend : Direct Reporting Line ______

Coordinating Line  -  -  -  -  -  -

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO THE 

CHIEF ACADEMIC OFFICER

Logan Campus

Sandra Podunavac

DEAN OF PROFESSIONAL AND 

TRANSFER PROGRAMS

Logan Campus

Christopher Ward (Interim)

GG

DEAN OF ALLIED HEALTH 

AND NURSING

Logan Campus

Dr. Lisa Haddox-Heston

DIRECTOR OF LIBRARIES II

Logan Campus

Kimberly Maynard

LIBRARY 

TECHNICAL 

ASSISTANT II

Logan Campus

Cassandra Goble

Williamson Campus

Anita Messer

IIHH

Page 8

 ADMINISTRATIVE 

SECRETARY

(Part-time)

Logan Campus

Nancy Fala

DEAN OF NON-TRADITIONAL 

PROGRAMS

Logan Campus

Melinda Saunders

JJEXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF CAMPUS 

AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS

Williamson Campus

Rita Roberson

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF CAMPUS 

AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS

Boone Campus

Brittany Justice

SITE 

COORDINATOR

Lincoln Site

Angela Bell

OFFICE 

ASSISTANT

(Part-time)

Lincoln Site

Brittney Adkins

DIRECTOR OF ACCREDITATION 

AND ASSESSMENT

Logan Campus

Regina Bias

LIBRARY 

TECHNICAL 

ASSISTANT I

Williamson Campus

Tara Drake

196



ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATE

Logan Campus

Katlyn Justice

HUMANITIES

FACULTY

Boone Campus

Larry D'Angelo

Logan Campus

Will Alderman

Nathan Freeman

Tehseen Irfan

Lillie Teeters

Williamson Campus

Adam Banks

Kaylee Taylor

SCIENCES FACULTY

Boone/Lincoln Campus

Vacant

Logan Campus

Dr. Lauren Bates

Vincent George

Guy Lowes

Stephanie Woodrum

Williamson Campus

Kimberly Hensley

Legend : Direct Reporting Line ______

Coordinating Line  -  -  -  -  -  -

DEAN OF PROFESSIONAL AND 

TRANSFER PROGRAMS

Logan Campus

Christopher Ward (Interim)

MATHEMATICS

FACULTY

Boone/Lincoln Campus

Susan Baldwin

Christopher Ward

Logan Campus

Michael Kitchen

Williamson Campus

Liza Jackson
SOCIAL SCIENCES 

FACULTY

Logan Campus

Kevin Dingess

Dr. Charles Keeney

Williamson Campus

Dr. Susan Baisden

CHIEF ACADEMIC OFFICER

Logan Campus

Vacant

EDUCATION FACULTY

Logan Campus

Dr. Gary Hensley

Courtney Pritchard

DIRECTOR OF ARTS AND HUMANITIES

Logan Campus

Vacant

PRESIDENT

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

DIRECTOR OF MATH AND SCIENCES

Lincoln Site

 Vacant

HH

HUMANITIES 

FACULTY

Logan Campus

Matthew Mayo

DIRECTOR OF PROFESSIONAL AND 

TECHNICAL 

Logan Campus

Vacant

BUSINESS FACULTY 

Logan Campus 

Douglas McCloud

Stephanie Mounts

Williamson Campus

Gordon Hensley

WELDING FACULTY

Williamson Campus

Cameron Woolum

INFORMATION 

TECHNOLOGY 

FACULTY

Logan Campus

Erica Farley

Rick Thompson

Boone Campus

Matthew Payne

ELECTRICAL

ENGINEERING 

FACULTY

Williamson Campus

Candace Hixenbaugh

CRIMINAL JUSTICE 

FACULTY

Logan Campus

Vacant Page 9

197



DIRECTOR OF 

MEDICAL 

LABORATORY 

TECHNOLOGY 

Logan Campus

Christy Spry

  DIRECTOR OF 

RESPIRATORY 

CARE 

TECHNOLOGY

Williamson 

Campus

Stephanie Daniel

DIRECTOR OF 

SURGICAL 

TECHNOLOGY 

Logan Campus

Misha Herndon

DIRECTOR OF

RADIOLOGIC 

TECHNOLOGY

Logan Campus

Kristin Collins

DEAN OF ALLIED HEALTH AND 

NURSING

Logan Campus

Dr. Lisa Haddox-Heston

Legend : Direct Reporting Line ______
Coordinating Line  -  -  -  -  -  -

DIRECTOR OF NURSING

Logan Campus

Melissa Kirk

NURSING FACULTY 

Logan Campus

Ashleigh Barnette

Loretta Brown

Sharon Davis

Heather Drake

Stacy Hatfield

Tyan Lester

Jennifer Lowdermilk

Mika McCoy

Dr. Debra Mullins

Sandra Vance

SIMULATION AND 

ACADEMIC LAB 

COORDINATOR

Logan Campus

Sherry Bradford

ADMINISTRATIVE 

SECRETARY, SR.

Logan Campus

Sammi Dodrill 

CHIEF ACADEMIC OFFICER

Logan Campus

Vacant

DIRECTOR OF 

EMERGENCY 

MANAGEMENT 

SERVICES

Logan Campus

Albert M. Smith

ALLIED HEALTH

FACULTY

Logan Campus

Andrea Brown

Cynthia Lowes

  ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATE

Logan  Campus

Susan Wolford
II

PRESIDENT

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

DIRECTOR OF 

COSMETOLOGY 

AND SALON 

MANAGEMENT

Logan Campus 

Kelly Warren

FACULTY

Logan Campus

Stephanie Woolum

FACULTY

Logan Campus

Jadriana Chaney

FACULTY

Logan Campus

Morgan Maynard

FACULTY

Williamson 

Campus

Gina Lester

FACULTY

Logan Campus

Meloney 

McRoberts

Page 10

ACADEMIC LAB 

MANAGER/

ADMINISTRATIVE 

SECRETARY, SR.

Logan Campus

Beth Deaton

ASSISTANT 

DIRECTOR OF

NURSING 

(WEEKEND OPTION)

Logan Campus

Maudie Orraca-Tetteh

NURSING FACULTY

(WEEKEND OPTION)

Logan Campus

Brittani Kirk

1 Vacant Position

(ASCEND Grant)

RETENTION 

SPECIALIST

Logan Campus

James Parker 

(ASCEND Grant) 

198



DEAN OF NON-TRADITIONAL 

PROGRAMS

Logan Campus

Melinda Saunders

Legend : Direct Reporting Line ______
Coordinating Line  -  -  -  -  -  -CHIEF ACADEMIC OFFICER

Logan Campus

Vacant

  ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATE

Logan  Campus

Kelly Green

PRESIDENT

Dr. Pamela L. Alderman

Page 11

CDL INSTRUCTOR

(Grant)

Williamson Campus

Jeff Trout

Brian Elkins

Cameron Colegrove

(Part-time)

LINEMAN INSTRUCTOR

(Grant)

Williamson Campus

Charles Isaacs

Vacant

 (Climbing)

COORDINATOR OF EDUCATIONAL 

OUTREACH

Logan Campus

Angela McDonald

JJ

DIRECTOR OF WORKFORCE 

DEVELOPMENT

Williamson Campus

Vacant

PROFESSOR/SPECIAL PROJECTS & 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

Logan Campus

Bill Alderman

WORKFORCE 

DEVELOPMENT 

OUTREACH 

SPECIALIST

Williamson Campus

Tonya Lowe

199


	Organizational Chart UPDATED 120324.pdf
	Organizational Chart UPDATED 120324.vsdx
	Title Page
	Index
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8
	9
	10
	11





